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CARSON CITY, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2017, 9:02 A.M. 

-oOo- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I'll smash the gavel.  

  This is the quarterly meeting of the Private 

Investigator's Licensing Board, and we're calling it to 

order. 

  Can we have roll call of the Board members,  

please?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir. 

  Board Member Colbert?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Flynn? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Collins? 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman Zane? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Nadeau will not be present for 

the first part of the meeting.  He will be joining us 

around 10:30.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Item number 

two on the agenda is the notification regarding public 

comment.  It says what it says, and it means what it 

means.  

 We'll be happy to take public comment from 
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anybody at this time.  If you have anything that you 

feel is germane or important, that the Board needs to 

know, that's not on the agenda today, we'd be happy to 

hear from you now.   

 And, also, we allow for public comment at the 

end of the meeting.  So if you miss the opportunity at 

this point in time or elect not to engage us right now, 

you will have the opportunity at the end of the meeting 

to talk to the Board about items you feel are important.  

 Any questions?   

 Any public comment in the north?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any public comment here 

in the south?  

 Not seeing any, we will go to item number 

three. 

 MR. INGRAM:  The financial report's been 

provided to the Board for their review.  If there's any 

questions, I'd be happy to answer those at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are there any questions 

of the Board members regarding the financial report?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  No. 

  MR. INGRAM:  And, Mr. Chairman, at this time, I 

would like to introduce our new Board counsel.  Sitting 

to my left is Rosalie Bordelove.  And she has been 
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assigned to the Board as our new counsel.  She has an 

extensive background and has just recently been hired by 

the Attorney General's Office.   

  So we're happy to have you on board with us, 

Rosalie.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

 Item number four, review and approve 

transcripts from December 1, 7 and 8, 2016 Board 

meetings, for possible action.  

 If possible, could we segregate those.  I have 

to abstain from one of them.  So if -- I would need to 

abstain from the December 1st Board meeting.   

 So if we could have a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion to 

accept the minutes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do we have a second?  

Okay.  We have a motion and a second.  Any Board 

discussion on the motion?  

 Any public comment on the motion?  

 Okay.  All in favor of the motion, signify by 

saying "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed to the 
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motion, signify by saying "no."  

 I need to vote in the following fashion.  I 

need to vote, abstain from voting on December 1 minutes, 

because I wasn't present.  So I don't know what happened 

except for what I read.  So I can't validate that 

they're correct.  I was present on December 7 and 8.  So 

I vote yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I think, we need a motion 

separately.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh, okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And I'll make that motion 

to accept the December 7th and 8th minutes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So we'll record 

the vote on the December 1st as three ayes and one 

abstention.   

  And now we'll move to the motion.  Do we have a 

second to accept the 7th and 8th minutes?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  We have a 

motion and a second.  Any public comment, or any Board 

questions?  

 Hearing none, the vote for 7th and 8th would be 

ayes.  I'm sorry.  If you are in agreement, vote "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

16 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any nos?  

 Carries.  

 Okay.  At this time, item number five is 

notification that anybody that expects to give comment 

or testimony or speak today to the Board about an agenda 

item needs to be sworn in, so that all that you have to 

say is done under oath.   

 So at this time, we'd like to do a blanket 

oath, so that we -- it saves us time later on.  So if 

you'd stand, raise your right hand, and take the oath.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you swear that the testimony 

you're about to give today is the truth, the whole 

truth, and nothing but the truth? 

  (Applicants and witnesses present were sworn.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you very much.  

 Now, we're moving to item number six, Triton 

Security, Inc., license number 1439.  Is there anybody 

here from Triton?  

  MR. ROWLEY:  I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  How are you doing?  

  MR. ROWLEY:  Good.  How are you? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good.  Are you David?  

  MR. ROWLEY:  I am not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You're not? 

  MR. ROWLEY:  Haven't seen him.  He's in 
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Florida.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. ROWLEY:  I'm Shane Rowley, the current 

president and qualifying agent for Triton.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And how do you 

spell your last name? 

  MR. ROWLEY:  My name is Shane David Rowley, 

R-O-W-L-E-Y.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  Okay.  So it 

says here Triton Security is seeking corporate officer 

approval for David Crupi.  Is that correct? 

  MR. ROWLEY:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So we have the background 

investigation completed on Mr. Crupi.  And are there any 

questions or added information that's required of the 

applicant?  

  MR. SALADINO:  That would be Investigator 

Woodruff in the north.  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  And, no, 

I don't have any additional information other than the 

report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you very 

much.  

 Is there any public comment regarding the 

agenda item?  
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 Okay.  Any Board comment regarding the agenda 

item?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I have 

one question.   

  How come Mr. Crupi is not here?  

  MR. ROWLEY:  He actually had talked to Gisele 

and let her know that he was not able to be here.  He is 

out of, lives out of state. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board comment?  

 Okay.  Do I have a motion on item number six?  

 I'd move that Triton Security, Inc., license 

number 1439, that's seeking corporate approval for 

David J. Crupi, be approved, subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there a second?  

There's a motion and a second.  Any Board comment or 

question on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, signify by saying 

"aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

 Any opposed, say "no." 

 It carries unanimously.  Thank you.  

  MR. ROWLEY:  Thank you.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number seven, Kane 

Consulting Group, Inc., license number 2258B.  Anybody 

here for Kane Consulting Group?  

 It's not unusual for some of these realignments 

to occur, and there might not be an appearance.  Some of 

these items that are not dealing with a brand-new 

license and brand-new licensees are considered on many 

occasions to be just administrative acts.  They are 

fully and completely disposable occasionally by blanket 

vote.  But every once in a while, we go through each and 

every one of them.  Because they are subject to review 

and decisions, just like all the rest of them.  Just 

sometimes there are no questions or might not be any 

questions.  And other times, they are.  

 To clarify that a little bit better, a lot of 

times, these are already licensed entities who are 

changing out a director or a board member in a corporate 

structure, and the only entity or individual that's 

subject to review is that newest board member, director 

or entity.   

 So as we go through the agenda items, some 

things will go quicker than others, and that's because 

that there's a level of background that's already 

established in the record before the Board.  And, but 

all of it is public, to the extent that it's subject to 
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the open meeting law.  So it's not as if we're hiding 

something.  It's just some things we don't have any 

questions on.  We've -- the record has been established 

by the staff work.  And so, therefore, we just move 

along and take names.   

 But on other occasions, if Board members have 

questions, or if any member of the public raises an 

issue of concern or interest to the Board, then we will 

subject that license application for further scrutiny or 

further questioning and to derive, make sure that we 

have an open, illuminative portrayal of the license 

application.  

 So.  And on occasion, there will be situations 

where some may not be in attendance.  And there is no 

law that says that you have to be here.  It's just in 

your best interest to do so, especially if a Board 

member or someone raises an issue that may be of public 

concern.  So you're at your own risk if you don't show 

up and you appear here, unless you have a good reason. 

 Any other Board comment on that particular 

matter?  

 Kane Consulting, number seven, license number 

2258B, is seeking corporate officer approval for Shawn 

Kane.  Is there anybody here on item number seven that 

needs to be heard? 
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 MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chairman, I received an email 

late yesterday afternoon.  Mr. Kane's daughter had a 

medical emergency, and he had to take her to the 

hospital.  He felt so bad that he couldn't attend, he 

actually sent a note from the hospital showing her 

admittance and release and is hoping that the Board can 

go ahead and make a decision in his absence.   

 He understands that if the Board requires 

speaking to him, that the item would have to be 

postponed to a later date.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Unless I hear otherwise, 

we're taking it to conclusion that the matter is here 

before us because it's finished and there are no 

negative connotations that we need to consider.   

  So that being the case, is there any public 

comment on item number seven?  

 Any Board comment on item number seven?  

 Can I get a motion on item number seven?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll make a motion 

that we accept Shawn Kane as a corporate officer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion.  And do 

I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Is 

there any Board comments or discussion regarding the 
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motion?  

 Hearing none, all in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Carries unanimous.  

 Moving to number eight, Laura M. Gabel, who is 

requesting a change in licensing status.  Is Ms. Gable 

here, please?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chairman, Ms. Gabel is out of 

state caring for an elderly mother and was not able to 

attend today.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

 Is there any public comment regarding item 

number eight on the agenda?  

 Any Board comment regarding item number eight 

on the agenda?  

 Entertain a motion, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I will motion that 

Laura M. Gabel, request for change in license status, be 

approved.  Ms. Gabel is requesting that her individual 

license, number 1731AX, be kept in abeyance so that she 

may become the qualifying agent for Westheimer Gabel 

Consulting, LLC, license number 1731.  The subject is -- 

This is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  We have a 

motion.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  A motion and a second.  

Any Board comment regarding the motion?  

 Hearing none, all in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 Carries unanimously.  

 Item number nine, Richard Beasley, who is 

requesting a change in license status.  Is there anybody 

here to address item nine?  

  MR. BEASLEY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good morning.  

  MR. BEASLEY:  Good morning.  I'm Richard 

Beasley.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  What are we 

doing here with you and the license?  

  MR. BEASLEY:  I'd like to become the qualifying 

agent for Global Intelligence Network.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And the license 

application investigation is concluded?  

  MR. SALADINO:  That was Investigator Woodruff 

in the north.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  
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  MR. WOODRUFF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Yes, 

it's been concluded.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Are there any 

additions as of today?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  No, there are not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you very much.  

 Any public comment regarding item number nine?  

 Is there any Board comment regarding item 

number nine?  

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that 

Mr. Beasley's individual license, number 1718, be placed 

into abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent 

for Global Intelligence Network, license number 883.  

This is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  We have a 

motion.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board comment 

regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Thank you, Mr. Beasley.  
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 MR. BEASLEY:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Item number 10, 

Chenega Infinity, LLC, is applying for a new corporate 

private patrolman license.  Is anybody here to address 

item number 10 on the agenda?  

 Seeing nobody, is there any public comments 

regarding item number 10 on the agenda?  

 Any Board comments regarding item number 10 on 

the agenda?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I actually had a 

couple questions, and he's not here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Can we trail the 

matter toward the end of the agenda?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Board's pleasure.   

  Okay.  Number 11, Lord Management Group, Inc., 

dba Alpha Surveillance Systems.  

  MR. POWERS:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good morning. 

  MR. POWERS:  Board members, Mr. Chairman, 

Mr. Director.   

  MR. GRAVO:  How are you guys?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good.  How are you? 

  MR. GRAVO:  Dennis with Lord Management. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair.  
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  Okay.  We've got a change in -- let's see.  We 

got a corporate officer issue, and then we have a change 

in the qualifying agent, correct?  

  MR. POWERS:  That's correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So we got a new 

corporation to be licensed. 

  MR. POWERS:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And then you're going to 

become the qualifying --  

  MR. POWERS:  The QA, yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Now I'm straight.  

All right.   

  Your name again, sir?  

  MR. GRAVO:  Dennis Gravo.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  

Mr. Gravo, can you give us a little bit of background 

about your new corporation and what you intend to do out 

here in the great state of Nevada?  

  MR. GRAVO:  Well, we do the surveillance camera 

systems now, but we're also doing the monitoring for 

properties where we actually watch the property 

virtually.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I see.  

  MR. GRAVO:  You know, with virtual monitoring.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I see. 
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  MR. GRAVO:  And then we have a cop down that 

intervenes when a suspect, or whatever, comes onto the 

property, and we try to get them off.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  You've contracted 

with Mr. Powers to be your eyes, ears and responsible 

party here in the great state of Nevada?  

  MR. GRAVO:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  Is 

there any public comment regarding the agenda item 

number 11?  

 Board comment regarding item number 11?    

  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I move --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  -- that Chenega 

Infinity, LLC, be approved for a new corporate private 

patrolman license, and that Stewart W. Beasley, Jr.'s 

license, number 1530, be placed into abeyance --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We --  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  -- so that he may 

become -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We -- you're doing the 

same thing I would have done.  We trailed that one.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Oh, I apologize.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes.  We're on number 11.  
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I was reading it, too, because I forgot to put a mark 

next to it.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  Well, strike the 

last here.  And that Lord Management Group, Inc., doing 

business as Alpha Surveillance System, be approved for a 

new private patrolman license, and that Randall M. 

Powers, license number 1372, that his individual license 

be kept in abeyance so that he may become the qualifying 

agent.  Corporate officer to be approved is Dennis L. 

Gravo.  And this is subject to all statutory and 

regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  We have a 

motion.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Is 

there any Board questions or comments on the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:   All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 Carries unanimously.  Congratulations.  Good 

luck to you. 

 MR. POWERS:  Thank you.  

  MR. GRAVO:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number 12, Nevada 
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Security Services is applying for a new corporate 

private patrolman's license.  Is anybody here for item 

number 12?  

 Good morning.  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Good morning.  

  MS. YBARRA:  Good morning. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair, get 

yourself comfortable.  

 Okay.  The qualifying officer in this 

particular situation would be Jacqueline Ybarra 

("Wy-BAHR-ah")?  

  MS. YBARRA:  "I-BAR-ah."  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Ybarra.  Okay.  I'm 

sorry.  And that's you?  

  MS. YBARRA:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And you, sir?  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Syed Hussain.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you spell your last 

name for the recorder? 

  MR. HUSSAIN:  H-U-S-S-A-I-N.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  You're welcome. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  So you've got 

a new corporation, and you're going to plan on doing 

what in Nevada?  
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  MR. HUSSAIN:  Nevada?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes.  What do you intend 

to do here?  

 MR. HUSSAIN:  Well, it's in the security 

services.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Just in general up 

in -- 

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Yeah, general. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Anyone that calls there, and 

anything.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All, the whole 

gamut?  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  And you've 

chosen Ms. Ibarra to --  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER ZANE:  -- be your eyes, ears and 

responsible party here in Nevada?  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Yes.  

  MS. YBARRA:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment regarding item number 12 on the agenda?  

 Oh.  I got you confused.  Spin you around.  

  MS. YBARRA:  I'm the corporate officer.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You're the corporate 

officer? 

  MS. YBARRA:  Yes, if I may.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  I knew 

one of you was going to be the responsible party.  I 

just needed to know who to whip later.  Okay.  All 

right.  Now I'm square.  

 Any public comment regarding number 12?  

 Okay.  Any Board comment regarding number 12?  

 Entertain a motion, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll make a motion 

that Syed Hussain, license number 1655, have his 

individual license be kept in abeyance so that he may 

become the qualifying agent, and, also, to approve the 

corporate officer, Jacqueline Ybarra. 

  MS. YBARRA:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  This is subject to all 

statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I have a motion.  Do I 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board questions 

regarding the agenda item?  Or the motion?  I'm sorry.  

 Hearing none, all in favor, say "aye."  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

32 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Carries unanimously.  Congratulations.  

  MR. YBARRA:  Thank you.  

  MR. HUSSAIN:  Thank you.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 13, Preferred 

Investigation, LLC.  Theresa Jones? 

 Good morning.  

  MS. JONES:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  How are you?  

  MS. JONES:  I'm fine.  How are you? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Not bad.  

  MS. JONES:  Theresa Jones.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  And tell us a 

little bit about what your plan is.  

  MS. JONES:  I'm going for my private 

investigations license.  My background is in mystery 

shopping and, also, investigations.  I worked very 

closely with Peter Maheu at Global Intelligence, and 

specialist.  And the reason I'm getting my license is to 

focus on the mystery shopping industry.  That's what we 

know, and that's what I do best.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MS. JONES:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there any public 
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comment or questions regarding the agenda item?  

 Any Board comment or questions regarding the 

agenda item?  

 Hearing none, do we have a motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I motion that Preferred 

Investigations, LLC, be granted the private 

investigator's licensing for Theresa M. Jones for an 

individual private investigator's license.  If, when 

approved, if approved, that this license will be held in 

abeyance so that you may become the qualifying agent.  

Subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  We have a 

motion.  Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Any 

Board comments or questions regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 It carries unanimously.  Congratulations.  Good 

luck.  

  MS. JONES:  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Number 14, 

easyBackgrounds, Inc.   

  MR. McELWEE:  Good morning. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  How are you doing?  

  MR. McELWEE:  Well, thank you.  Good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you introduce 

yourself and tell us a little bit about your background 

and what you would like to do?  

  MR. McELWEE:  Sure.  Brian McElwee, president 

of easyBackgrounds.  We are actually a background check 

company.  We perform background screening for employers.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And you do that 

from just about -- or from your base of operations in 

New Hampshire, or?  

  MR. McELWEE:  New Hampshire.  But it is 

entirely possible that even though we don't solicit 

business in Nevada, that we may get a client who 

approaches us and wants to do business with us.  And, 

also, that consumers, the subjects of our investigations 

may be from Nevada.  And with all of that considered, 

our legal counsel suggested that we have a sister.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Now, you 

mispronounced Nevada just a little bit.  But I know 

that --   

  MR. McELWEE:  I'm from about as far away as you 

can get.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I notice that you didn't 

call it "New-HAMP-shaw," you know. 
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  MR. McELWEE:  Just trying to go easy on you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I see.  Okay.   

  All right.  Are there any public comments 

regarding the license application?  

 Any Board comments regarding the license 

application?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Marion Q., who's that?  

  MR. McELWEE:  Marion is our CEO.  And she's 

licensed here.  She's an officer of the corporation, and 

not present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And what relationship is 

she to you?  

  MR. McELWEE:  She's my bride.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So you're just 

going for broke?  

  MR. McELWEE:  Dutifully.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got you.  All right. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  The transcripts will be 

available.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Any other 

Board questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do I hear a motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that 

Brian F. McElwee be granted an individual private 
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patrolman's -- private investigator's license, and that 

that individual license be placed in abeyance so that he 

may become the qualifying agent, and, also, to approve 

corporate officer Marion Q. McElwee.  This is subject to 

all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  MR. INGRAM:  It's corporate. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It's corporate? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh.  The corporate.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That he become the qualifying 

agent for easyBackgrounds, Inc. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh, that he may become 

the qualifying agent for easyBackgrounds, Inc.  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Would you like me to do 

that over?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  I'll go slow 

this time.  easyBackgrounds, Inc. is applying for a new 

corporate private investigator license.  Brian F. 

McElwee is applying for an individual private 

investigator license.  My motion is to approve so that 

he may -- so that his individual license be placed in 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

Also to be approved is corporate officer Marion Q. 

McElwee.  This is subject to all statutory and 
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regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We got a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Good luck. 

 MR. McELWEE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Board 

members.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number 15, Tac Group 360 

Inc.  Anybody here from Tac Group? 

  Good morning.  

  MR. LETTIERI:  Good morning.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  How are you doing?   

  MR. LETTIERI:  Good, thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good.  Can you introduce 

yourself, and.  

  MR. LETTIERI:  My name is Antony Lettieri.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What's Tac Group 

got in mind?   

  MR. LETTIERI:  Tac Group is a private 

investigation company, hopefully.  And I recently 
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retired from the United States Police Department as a 

detective the last 10 years in the Bureau.  And I plan 

on continuing in the fraud and financial crimes 

investigation area.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there any public 

comment or questions regarding item number 15?   

  Any Board comment or questions regarding item 

number 15?  

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll motion that Tac 

Group 360 Inc. is granted a private investigator's 

license, that Antony D. Lettieri be granted a private 

investigator's license and that this license be held in 

abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.  

This is subject to all statutory and regulatory 

requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I've got a motion.  Do I 

have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'd second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Any 

Board question or comment?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 
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 Carries unanimously.  Congratulations.  Good 

luck. 

 MR. LETTIERI:  Thank you very much.  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number 16, Rose R. Deka.  

Is Rose Deka here?  

  MR. INGRAM:  I think, she's coming. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Did I get the last 

name right?  

  MS. DEKA:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  I try to keep 

a tally of what I get right.  

  MS. DEKA:  Remember that my middle name is 

Rebecca.  So it rhymes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got you.  All right.  

Let's see.  What's a little bit about your background, 

and what do you think you're going to be doing?  

  MS. DEKA:  My background is I'm right now 

working for a background, IntelliCorp.  It's a 

background check company.  So we do national criminal 

and civil checks.  And they wanted me to get my private 

investigator license for Nevada.  So, eventually, the 

qualifying agent right now is planning on retiring.  We 

don't know yet when.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Is there any 
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public comment regarding agenda item number 16?  

 Any Board comment regarding agenda item 

number 16?  

 I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I would 

request that we approve Rose R. Deka for her individual 

private investigator's license, and that this is subject 

to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I have a motion.  Do I 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and second.  Any 

Board comment or questions regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimous.  Congratulations.  

  MS. DEKA:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you for coming.  

  Number 17, IPS Security, Inc.  

 Good morning.  

  MR. SAYED:  Good morning, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Make yourself at home.  

Can you introduce yourself and give us a little bit of 

background?  
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  MR. SAYED:  Sure.  My name is David Sayed.  I'm 

with IPS Security.  IPS is a California-based company, 

mainly focused on event security.  One of my clients is 

Insomniac, which does the annual EDC festival here.  I 

cover all their shows in California.  So I've been 

working closely with them for the past about two years 

now.  He asked me to obtain my Nevada license to be able 

to provide security for them for EDC.  And so that's why 

I'm here today.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment or questions regarding item number 17?  

 Any Board comment or questions regarding item 

number 17?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I have one, Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  How do you plan on 

staffing?  

  MR. SAYED:  The majority will be -- I'm going 

to license my California team and bring them, transport 

them here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So your California 

team are going to get licenses --  

  MR. SAYED:  Right. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- in the state of Nevada?  

  MR. SAYED:  Yes, correct.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm satisfied.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

 Any other Board comments or questions?  

 Okay.  I'll hear a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I move 

that --  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make --  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  -- IPS Security, Inc. be 

approved a new corporate private patrolman license and 

that David A. Sayed have his -- receive his individual 

private patrolman license, and that his individual 

license be placed into abeyance so that he may become 

the qualifying agent.  This is subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  And do 

we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board comment 

or question regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 It carries unanimously.  Congratulations. 

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I'm sure that you've 
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already had a little bit of discussion with staff, but 

there's particular enforcement issues that we're very 

concerned with at the bigger events or EDC.  So whatever 

you can do to make staff's life easier doing those large 

events, you'll find, helps you out in the long run.  

  MR. SAYED:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.   

  MR. SAYED:  All right. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Appreciate it.  

 Number 18, Overwatch Security Group, Inc. 

 Good morning.  How are you doing?  Can you 

introduce yourself, please? 

 MR. WHETSEL:  Lenny Whetsel.  I have a military 

background, served nine years in the Marine Corps, 22 

years in federal law enforcement.  I retired six years 

ago, and I've been doing private security since then.  I 

opened up a company four years ago.  We do private 

investigation, security, security training.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Welcome to 

Las Vegas.  

  MR. WHETSEL:  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you for your service.  

  MR. WHETSEL:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any public comment 

regarding item number 18?  
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 Any Board comment regarding item number 18?  

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that 

Overwatch Security Group be granted a new corporate 

private patrolman license, that Leonard Whetsel be 

granted an individual private patrolman license, upon 

its approval that that license be held in abeyance so 

that he may become the qualifying agent.  This is 

subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We've got a motion.  Do 

we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board comment 

or question regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

  Carries unanimously.  Congratulations. 

  MR. WHETSEL:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. WHETSEL:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you for coming.  

  Number 19, Invictus International Holdings. 

  Good morning.  
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  MR. KOETTING:  Good morning.  How are you 

doing?  Matt Koetting with Invictus International.  We 

also have two dba's I'd like to file.  I don't know if 

we can do that now or just take them in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  The dba's you can handle 

through staff.  

  MR. KOETTING:  Thank you.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  MR. KOETTING:  My background is was a U.S. 

Marine for 11 years.  I retired recently, in November.  

Also, a background in business with a degree in tac 

startups, securities investigations on the federal side, 

doing foreign internal defense and things of that sort.   

  So we are a California-based company over 

there.  We -- I came out to expand the company, become 

operational, and so we filed a new LLC out here.  And, 

eventually, we'd like to consolidate and have everybody 

registered as our corporate officers out here as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you for your 

service.  

  MR. KOETTING:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there any public 

comment or question regarding item number 19?  

 Any Board comment or question regarding item 

number 19?  
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 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll motion that 

Invictus International Holdings, LLC, be granted a 

license for a new corporation for private patrolman, 

Matthew --  

  MR. KOETTING:  "KAT-ing."  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  -- Koetting --  

  MR. KOETTING:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  -- be granted his 

individual private patrolman's license, and that this 

license be held in abeyance so that you may become the 

qualifying agent.  This is subject to all statutory and 

regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  The corporate member to 

be approved would be Mr. Koetting. 

  MR. KOETTING:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Mr. Koetting be approved 

as -- I don't see the corporate part on there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Member here (indicating).  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Oh.  The corporate 

member to be approved is Matthew Koetting.  I'm sorry 

about that.  

  MR. KOETTING:  No problem. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I've got a motion.  Do we  

have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board question 

or comment regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."  

 (Board members said "aye.") 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Carries unanimously.  

  MR. KOETTING:  Thank you.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Congratulations.  Good 

luck. 

 MR. KOETTING:  Good thing you didn't just ask 

for a break the entire time.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good to hear. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  The transcripts will be 

available this month.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number 20, First Coast 

Security Services.  

  Good morning.  

  MR. AUSTIN:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair, get 

comfortable.  

  MR. AUSTIN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you tell us who you 

are and what you're up to?  

  MR. AUSTIN:  I'm Christopher Austin.  I work 
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for First Coast Security.  And we're looking -- we've 

had some possible interest from some existing customers 

in other states to -- that they might move to Nevada.  

So, getting ahead of the curve. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And where are you 

from?  

 MR. AUSTIN:  Jacksonville, Florida. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You, too, marginally just 

got the pronunciation.  

  MR. AUSTIN:  Did the accent get in the way? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yeah.  

  Any public comment or questions regarding item 

number 20 on the agenda?  

 Any Board comment or questions regarding item 

number 20?  

 I'll entertain a motion.  

 I'd move that First Coast Security Services, 

Inc., who is applying for a new corporate private 

patrolman's license, be approved, that Christopher B. 

Austin, who's applying for an individual private 

patrolman license, be approved, and that his individual 

license be placed into abeyance so that he may become 

the qualifying agent for the corporation.  The corporate 

officers to be approved are Elmer Bland Cologne and 

Michelle Lynn Hendrix.  Subject to all statutory and 
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regulatory requirements.  

 Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We got a motion.  We have 

a second.  Any Board comment or question regarding the 

motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations. 

 MR. AUSTIN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thanks for coming.  

  MR. AUSTIN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Reid A. Jones, number 21.  

  Good morning. 

  MR. JONES:  Good morning, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Could you both introduce 

yourselves, please. 

  MR. JONES:  My name is Reid Jones.  I currently 

work in the Nevada for Griz Global Solutions. 

  MR. McPEAKE:  And my name is Michael McPeake, 

the current qualifying agent for license 2203B, Griz 

Global Solutions.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So we've got a new 

corporate entity?  

  MR. JONES:  No, sir.  It's a standing corporate 

entity.  We're just asking to change qualifying agents 

from Mr. McPeake to myself.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh, okay.   

  Is there any public comment regarding the item 

number 21?  

 Any Board comment regarding item number 21?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It threw me.  This one is 

usually up toward the beginning of the agenda.  

  MR. JONES:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do we have a motion?   

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  I'll make a motion,  

Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Yeah, I'll motion --   

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Oh, go ahead, sir.   

  Okay.  Reid A. Jones, I'll motion that 

Mr. Reid A. Jones be granted an individual private 

patrolman license, and that this license be placed into 

abeyance so that you may become the qualifying agent for 

Griz Global Solutions, LLC, license number 2203B.  This 

is subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board comment 

or question regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Thank you.  

  MR. JONES:  Thank you.  

  MR. McPEAKE:  Thank you all, appreciate it.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 22, Daniel M. 

Campos.  

 Good morning.  

  MR. CAMPOS:  Good morning.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You're Mr. Campos?  

  MR. CAMPOS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Great.  All right.  Can 

you give us a little bit of background about yourself 

and tell us what your plans are?  

  MR. CAMPOS:  Yes, sir.  I was 20 years  

retirement, joined Century Security in 2008, and I'm 

currently holding the position of vice president of 

operations.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any public comment 

regarding the license application, item number 22?  

 Any Board comment regarding item number 22?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you for your 

service.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got a motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll make a motion 

that Daniel M. Campos be granted his individual private 

patrolman's license, upon approval this individual 

license be placed into abeyance so that he may become 

the qualifying agent for Century Security Management in 

Las Vegas, license number 1315, and that we also approve 

corporate officer Melvin A. Mueller.  This is subject to 

all statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We've got a motion.  Do 

we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any comment or question 

on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations. 

 MR. CAMPOS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck.  
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  MR. CAMPOS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 23, Robert 

Holland. 

  Good morning.  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Good morning. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  How are you?  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Good.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You're Mr. Holland? 

 MR. HOLLAND:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good.  Okay.  What do we 

got going on?  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Applying for my -- to be 

qualifying agent.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So you're looking 

for an individual license?  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Yes, individual license.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.   

  All right.  Any public comment regarding item 

number 23?  

 Any Board comment or questions regarding item 

number 23?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  I just 

want to bring attention to the Board and the transcript 

that I've known Mr. Holland for many years.  We worked 

together at the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
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Department.  Mr. Holland was in my chain of command a 

couple times, but he was not a direct report.  And I 

feel, if it's okay with him, to vote on this matter.  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So, likewise, the 

fact that you worked with Member Flynn shouldn't be held 

against you, either, right?  

  MR. HOLLAND:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That's why I asked him.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Any other 

Board question or comments?  

 Do we have a motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I move that 

Robert Holland be approved his individual private 

patrolman license and that his individual license be 

placed into abeyance so he may become the qualifying 

agent for Cambridge Security Services Corp., license 

number 1773B, this subject to -- this is subject to all 

statutory and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board comment or 

questions on the motion?  
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 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations.  

  MR. HOLLAND:  Thank you all.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I tried. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Number 24, Darren 

Shepard.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes, present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Come on forward.  Make 

yourself comfortable.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Good morning, Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good morning.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You're Mr. Shepard?  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes, sir, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  Can you tell 

us a little bit about yourself and what you got in mind?  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes, sir.  The past 18 years, I 

was employed by, at TSI Security as the vice president.  

Due to a recent acquisition November 22nd, thereabout, 

we were acquired by SOS Security, where I'm now 

currently employed as the regional director for SOS.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any public comment 

regarding item number 24?  
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 Any Board comment regarding item number 24?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chair. 

  Mr. Shepard, on the background investigation 

there were some concerns under your finances.  Do you 

want to address those?  I'm sure you're aware.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.  I divorced 

and had a huge amount, and I filed bankruptcy.  Gosh, 

that was probably 20 years ago.  Then, when I moved from 

L.A. to Nevada, I had some financial issues as well, and 

I had a BK at that point in time as well.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  And I'm also 

concerned on several accounts being past due.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes.  There are two accounts.  

They are medical accounts that are, have been disputed 

through the insurance company.  And I'm still waiting 

for a resolution on those, on those two items with 

medical.  And there was another that was paid off.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Who is the investigator on 

this?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Woodruff in the 

north.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Why don't you just sit up 

front today?  Anything you want to add?  Do you see 

where I'm going with my questions?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  I spoke to Mr. Shepard on two 
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different accounts.  I told him on the first phone call 

that he had several different delinquencies and such 

that he -- and several of them he did not know about.  

And those were the medical issues.  Then there were some 

other balances that were charged off, that I told him to 

be prepared to address to the Board, because they would 

want to know exactly the circumstances around those.   

  And I followed up with him in the second phone 

call, which he said that he had prepared those 

statements for you today.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So my final question, 

Mr. Shepard, what's your plan on the outstanding ones?  

I understand the two that are in dispute.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That happens.  I've done 

it myself.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  But the other outstanding 

one, what's the plan?  

  MR. SHEPARD:  The one that's outstanding was a 

voluntary repossession which happened 13 plus years ago.  

It was a voluntary repossession, and the vehicle was 

surrendered.  That charge-off is scheduled to be 

dismissed off my credit within six months, according to 

the credit bureau.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm done with my  

questions, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other comments 

or questions by the Board?  

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll make a motion 

that Darren L. Shepard be granted his individual private 

patrolman license, that this is subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board comment 

or questions regarding the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Good luck.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. SHEPARD:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 25.  I hope 

that I don't mess -- "DAHR-em"?  

  MR. SAMRA:  "DAHR-em."  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I was going to 
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mess that up. 

  MR. SAMRA:  Everybody else does.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Can you tell us a 

little bit about your background and what you'd like to 

do?  

  MR. SAMRA:  Yes, sir.  I'm a veteran law 

enforcement officer, 38 years of service in California.  

The last 12 years, I've been a polygraph examiner.  I'm 

hoping to get a license in the state of Nevada.  I've 

been here for about nine months.  I moved here last 

summer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Is there any 

public comment or questions regarding item number 24?  

 Are there any Board comments or questions 

regarding item number 24?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  I have one, Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  My -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, sir, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Where did you receive 

your original training, polygraph training?  

  MR. SAMRA:  Polygraph training?  Backster 

School of Lie Detection, class 168, number 26.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  And are your 

ongoing yearly training, is that all up-to-date?  

  MR. SAMRA:  Yes, sir.  
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  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  

  MR. SAMRA:  I'm actually, I'm actually working 

right now as a polygraph instructor for the Marston 

Polygraph Academy in San Bernardino, California.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  And what type of 

clientele are you looking for here in Nevada, what would 

be your main focus?  

  MR. SAMRA:  I'm not working right now, sir.  I 

don't have a license.  But the clientele will be whoever 

wants to be interviewed to determine the truth with the 

use of a polygraph instrument.  I don't know, I know a 

license examiner here in Nevada, but I really don't know 

what the market is going to be like currently.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  Are you also 

going to do work in California, too?  

  MR. SAMRA:  Not if I can do it here.  It's been 

a long row to hoe getting a license, or getting to this 

stage in the license.  So I'd rather work in the 

community where I live in.  But it is possible that I'll 

go to Arizona and California as well.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  Thank you.  I 

have no further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.   

  Mr. Flynn?   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, the question was 
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answered.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I'd move that 

Dharam Samra be approved his individual polygraph 

examiner's license, and this subject to all statutory 

and regulatory requirements.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got a motion.  Do I have 

a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board questions or 

comments on the motion?  

  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations.  

  MR. SAMRA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. SAMRA:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 26, CRI 

Security International, LLC.  

  MR. HANKS:  Good morning, council.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good morning. 

  MR. HANKS:  North council.  I'm Lanny Hanks.  

I've been in law enforcement since '97, was involved in 
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a horrific wreck in 2010 where I broke my back during a 

pursuit.  I was the pursuing one.  In my law enforcement 

career, I was patrol and, also, a homicide investigator 

and, also, deputized by DEA to be a DEA taskforce 

narcotics officer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. HANKS:  I currently have a security, 

investigation and private security company in Nebraska.  

And I have 20, around 20 armed security officers and 

four private investigators underneath my agency license.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. HANKS:  And why am I coming out here, 

you're probably going to ask.  We're going to work 

with -- well, I went to school for advance and executive 

protection through CRI out on the north, North 

Las Vegas, and was very successful and graduated top of 

my class.  Very challenging.  Went home, learned a lot 

from there.  They called and wanted me to become an 

instructor.  So I went through their instructor program 

and then became a lead instructor with CRI here, out of 

Nevada.   

  And after discussing with Doron, the owner of 

that, and Brad Van Pelt, who's one of my senior security 

supervisors back in Nebraska, we decided to start a 

corporation here, because we do some high-end EP and 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

63 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

international client stuff, primarily in Nebraska, and 

we're just getting started in Colorado, in Aspen, too.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  Is 

there any public comment or questions regarding item  

number 26?  

 Any Board comments or questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  

 Mr. Hanks, the only concern on the background 

investigation was some credit issues.  The investigator 

made mention that you are working with the credit 

agencies to correct these issues.  Can you add something 

to that?  

  MR. HANKS:  Yes, sir.  One, one of those 

incidents on there was contested years ago, which has 

since been.  I contacted them.  One of them we paid off, 

and one of them I'm working to pay off.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  And -- okay.  Who's 

the investigator on this one?  

  MR. SALADINO:  I am, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Anything to add?  

  MR. SALADINO:  I did receive a letter that one 

of the charge-offs was taken off.  I received that 

letter.  And then, in conversations with Mr. Hanks, he 

is actively working with them to get it all squared 

away.  
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  MR. HANKS:  Okay.  It's medical bills.  And I 

got buried with them.  And some of them I didn't even 

know about until it was brought to my attention, which 

is unfortunate, but I'm still obligated to take care of 

them.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  We do that as a public 

service.  

  MR. HANKS:  Yeah.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you, 

Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you, sir. 

  Any other Board question or comments?  

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll move that CRI 

Security International be granted a new corporate 

license, private investigator and private patrolman 

license, Lanny L. Hanks be granted private investigator 

and private patrolman license, and that this license be 

placed into abeyance so that you may become the 

qualifying agent.  Also, the members to be approved are 

Lanny Hanks, Doron Benbenski --   

  MR. HANKS:  Benbenisty, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  -- Benbenisty, and 

Bradley Van Pelt.  This is subject to all statutory and 

regulatory requirements.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any comment or 

question, Board comment or question on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."   

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations.  

  MR. HANKS:  Board members, investigators, thank 

you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  We trailed item number 10. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  This is quite a list. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can I do, recall number 

10?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, but we do require a 

break. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Yes, sir.   

  We're on a break.  

                        * * * * * 

(A break was taken, 10:02 to 10:20 a.m.) 

* * * * * 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are we ready up north?  
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  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We're going to -- 

what we've got is, informally, some of the registrants 

who are up for appeal were told to come in at 11:00, so 

that the meeting, the earlier session of the meeting 

would be orderly and it could flow properly.  So we 

don't anticipate the influx of registrants appeals to 

come in until that point in time.   

  So we're going to proceed a little bit here, 

and then we might take another break.  We do have the 

ability to take anybody that comes in and address their 

matter as it goes.  So it could be that when we take a 

break, it wouldn't -- we'll maybe check in every 10 

minutes and see if three or four people have showed up.  

And if three or four people are here, we will go back on 

the record and handle the three or four people that 

showed early, so we can keep it flowing.  

 So, for right now, I want to go back to item 

number 10.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, the 

investigator said that there may be follow-up on my 

question.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So we'll keep item 

number 10 on trail.  

 And we have -- anybody in the north come in 
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that might be there for a registration appeal?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  We have no one here, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have one person 

here in the audience.  Are you here for a registration 

appeal, ma'am?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes, my guard card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Would you like to be 

heard?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Come on forward.  

  Before you sit down, were you here earlier and 

were you sworn in?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  You'll need to be 

sworn so that your testimony is given under oath.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Okay.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Please raise your right hand.  

Do you swear that your testimony today will be the 

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you tell me your name 

and spell, or spell your last name? 

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Shirley Spillers-Cole, 

S-P-I-L-L-E-R-S, hyphen, C-O-L-E.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And have you had 

an opportunity to look at the agenda today?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I'm just, I'll review it 

now, because it just was handed to me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And do you know 

which number you are?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  45, I think.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  47. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  47.  Okay.  Make yourself 

comfortable.  

  (There was a brief discussion off the record.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  The 

investigator that was handling your case has left the 

room for a moment.  So we'll -- it's difficult to 

proceed without them being able to indicate the reason 

for their determination.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Mr. Chair? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, sir. 

  MR. SALADINO:  I have the notes in front of me, 

if you want proceed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you.   

  All right.  So we're here to allow you to have 

an appeal.  We denied your employment registration.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So can you tell us the 
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reason for the denial, please? 

  MR. SALADINO:  It was for a 5-28-1998 welfare 

fraud.  And it was a felony conviction.  And it was 

reduced under 1203.4 to a misdemeanor per 17(b) of the 

1203.4. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And what was the 

conviction date again?  

  MR. SALADINO:  It was 5-28 of 1998.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Can you give us 

some information about the circumstances surrounding 

that case?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I was told that I didn't 

report income to the welfare.  And I did report it.  But 

they said that I didn't, so they charged me for welfare 

fraud.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Ma'am, what state did this 

happen in?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  What state?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, what state?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Oh.  Los Angeles, 

California.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Los Angeles.  And how long 

have you lived in Las Vegas?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Since I was four.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So you were living in 

California at the time, though?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  How long did you live in 

California? 

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  How long did I live there?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, ma'am.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Since I was four years old, 

so.  I'm forty --  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You're from Las Vegas, or 

you're from L.A.?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I'm from Los Angeles. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I 

misunderstood.  And how long have you been in Las Vegas?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I'm not in Vegas now.  I'm 

trying to move to Vegas.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And my last question, what 

do you do for employment right now? 

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I'm a security officer.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And how long have you been 

a security officer in California?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Almost 30 years.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Oh, really?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I don't have any 
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other questions, Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Yes, I do have one 

question.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  You were sentenced to 

five years probation, community service and restitution.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Did you satisfactorily 

complete those items?  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes, ma'am.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Mr. Chair, this was the only 

arrest and conviction.  And it was listed on the 

application.  And she provided all the court documents 

as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  If there's no question --  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  And then, later on, it was 

dismissed.   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'm sorry. 

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  I was saying, later on, it 

was dismissed.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  It was 2003, looks like.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair, if there's no 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

72 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

questions in the north, I'm prepared to make a motion. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are there any questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I make a motion that 

considering this was almost 19 years ago, that she's had 

a long career with security in California since, and 

there's -- she was forthcoming, which is refreshing for 

this Board, that we overturn the appeal and grant her a 

work card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board questions or 

comments on the motion?   

  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Good luck. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  It's not like it wasn't in 

supply.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Thank you very much.  I've 

been doing this for a long time. 
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Welcome to Las Vegas.  

  MS. SPILLERS-COLE:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Let's see.  Just so that 

we're not getting paid to do nothing.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  He stepped in, and then he 

stepped out. 

  MR. INGRAM:  We're going to step out, see if we 

can get Mr. Batchelor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We can --  

  (The Reporter interrupted because several 

people were talking at the same time.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh, I'm sorry.  No, I'm 

sorry.  I need to whip Mr. Ingram.  

  Why don't we open item number 54 for a little, 

little bit.  And then we'll reopen it later on in the 

agenda.  But I kind of thought, right now, we could take 

a couple of minutes to discuss items that might be 

germane to item number 54, because there's a time issue.   

  One of the items that I would like to get some 

record on, because I don't think we've covered it, and 

most of that's my fault, and that's a little bit of  

spontaneous response from Mr. Ingram, who serves as the 

president of an international regulatory entity.  And 

beings that my absence last time, I wasn't able to make 

the disclosures that I wanted to.   
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  So you could tell everybody so that -- that's 

not aware that what your other job is that you don't get 

paid for.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.   

  I've been of member for the past three years of 

the International Association of Security and 

Investigative Regulators.  It is an association that the 

previous director was a member of, Mechele Ray.  And I 

continued as a member in her absence.   

  This, this association is something that's 

grown.  We currently are represented by 32 states.  

We're represented by seven providences in Canada, by the 

Security Council in France, and are actively recruiting 

other countries as we speak.  

 The association allows membership not only for 

regulators across the nation and internationally, but 

also allows industry individuals to join the 

association.  And the reason for that is we -- we have 

several committees that are working on different items 

throughout the year.  It is an annual conference that is 

attended by a large number of members.  And every year, 

a different state tries to host the conference.  

 We were requested by the association to pick up 

and see if we could host last year's conference in 

November of last year here in Las Vegas, due to some 
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political decisions made, who were slotted to attend in 

North Carolina, and due to some policy changes there, 

many states were prohibited from traveling to North 

Carolina.  So they asked if we could put something 

together here.  Myself and Chief Irizarry were able to 

bring it together, and actually hosted the conference 

last year, which you so graciously attended, as did 

Board Member Collins.  

 Unbeknownst to me, the elections of board 

members was due in November of last year.  There was a 

large turnover due to retirements.  And I was at that 

time elected as the president of the International 

Association.  So I'm serving in that capacity now as 

well.   

 We are gearing up.  We have several 

subcommittees still working on the items that we 

discussed at last year's conference.  And we'll be doing 

updates at this year's conference, which will be held 

the last part of November in Chattanooga, Tennessee.   

 So thank you for allowing me to expand upon 

that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

 Do we have any other Board issues of any import 

or that would fall under the agenda item?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I have a question.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  If we were to attend that 

conference, is that something that the P.I. Board could 

pick up or assist with travel, or is that on our on?  

  MR. INGRAM:  We could talk about that.  The new 

budget for next fiscal year starts in July.  So in May, 

I will be creating a new budget.  So if that's something 

that any of the Board members are interested in 

attending, let me know right away, and we can try to 

work in the budget to accommodate that.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Well, I think, it's just 

the goal is to bring regulators from various states 

together.  I think, it will be important that at least 

one of us attend.  I know, if two of us attends, it 

becomes an issue.  If three of us attends, it's a bigger 

issue.  And four of us, we have to invite the entire 

state of Nevada to attend with us, so.   

  MR. INGRAM:  Right. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  But my recommendation to 

you would be to put an item in the budget for at least 

one Board member to attend.  And we can make a 

determination amongst ourselves who we draw.  If that's 

okay, Mr. Chair.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Fine with me, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That's my recommendation 

to you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So noted.  I'll make that 

recommendation.  Thank you.  

 I do have one other item, Mr. Chairman, I'd 

like to bring up.  The Board elects a chairman, and that 

chairman serves for a two-year term.  Your two-year term 

does end June 30th of this year.  So July 1, we will be, 

either through nominations and elections of the Board 

members, that will be an agenda item for June, for the 

Board members to consider either reelecting this chair, 

or if they want to nominate other individuals or 

themselves, that we will have that election on the 

record during the June Board meeting.  

 So if any Board members are interested or 

would -- I'd like you to consider your nominations and 

be prepared for the June Board meeting.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okey-doke. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions?  

  I'd like to get as many as we can, so that we 

can limit our oath to 30 times.  

  UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN IN LAS VEGAS:  Kevin, is it 

Chattanooga, Tennessee, or Nashville this year?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Chattanooga.  
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  UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN IN LAS VEGAS:  Chattanooga.  

Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And while we wait, 

Mr. Chair, we can do item number 10.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Number 10, we're going to 

go back to item number 10.  Thank you, Mr. Flynn. 

  Chenega Infinity, LLC.  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And my question of the 

applicant, who's not here, is, looking at his 

application as well as his background, I really cannot 

make a determination as to the scope of his employment 

or prior employment.  Maybe I'm missing something.  But 

that was my question.  It's not necessarily an area of 

concern, although I'd like to know more about the 

individual.   

 And I know, during the short break, one of the 

investigators went outside to do a follow-up.  So I'll 

let staff report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  I did 

speak with Mr. Bentley.  And he's planning on receiving 

a contract with Hoover Dam, through the BOR, with Hoover 

Dam and a few other dams he didn't say.  But he's going 

to plan on having around 50 armed guards at the various 

dams here in Nevada and other states.  And that's the 
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reason he's applying to receive his license, is for 

that, is to bid and, hopefully, to seek that contract.   

  And that's it, it's what's his plans for here 

in Nevada.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Right, but what does he 

currently, what's the scope of his employment now?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Oh, his current employment?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Well, on his application, let 

me see here. 

  Yeah, I guess, as far as his current 

employment, there's not much there.  I could make a 

call, a phone call on our next break.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, please.  Yeah, 

especially considering the sensitivity of what he's 

applying for, that it being a national resource, I 

think, we need to know more about him.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Okay.  

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Again, for the record, I 

don't, I'm not specifying an area of concern.  But I 

know nothing about the individual.  And I don't feel 

comfortable voting.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We'll trail 

number 10.  

  Can I get a show of hands of everybody who is 
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here to -- here for license, or work card registration  

appeals?  

 Okay.  Well, we'll have you stand, raise your 

right hand, and be sworn in, because your testimony 

needs to be taken under oath.  And then, when you come 

up, we'll have to ask you your name.  And you'll need to 

spell your last name so that the stenographer can get it 

down.  And then we'll proceed with you.  

 There's quite a few on the agenda.  So we'll 

take you as you're seated.  I'll call you forward.  And 

I don't mean to be rude, I'll just point and say you're 

next.  And then we'll get to know you a little bit.  All 

right.  

 If you'd all stand and raise your right hand, 

please.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you swear that the testimony 

you give today will be the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth?   

  (Applicants and witnesses present were sworn.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you. 

  Ma'am, come forward.  How are you?  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  I'm good, thank you.  I'm 

Ashley Whittington.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  You can sit down.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Last name,  
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W-H-I-T-T-I-N-G-T-O-N.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, and I find that 

you're number 52.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  On the agenda.  Okay.  

Who's the investigator that handled Ashley?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Batchelor. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you tell us why she 

was denied? 

 MR. BATCHELOR:  Yes.  And she was denied for 

multiple reasons, good moral character, crimes involving 

moral turpitude.  She has 10 convictions and --   

  (The Reporter indicated difficulty hearing 

Mr. Batchelor.)  

 MR. BATCHELOR:  Sure.  She has 10 convictions.  

And -- all right.  I guess, what I saw online is that --  

 (The Reporter indicated there's still 

difficulty hearing.) 

 MR. BATCHELOR:  And that's why she was denied. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Why don't you start over.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Okay.  Good idea. 

  Ms. Whittington was denied for good moral 

character and crimes involving moral turpitude.  And she 

has 10 convictions, or nine convictions and one that's 

currently pending.  She has a court date tomorrow for 
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possession of drug paraphernalia.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Can you tell 

us what all you know about what Mr. Batchelor just 

reported to us?  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Yes, I know about everything.  

I wrote something, if I may read it?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sure.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Okay.  Good morning.  My name 

is Ashley Whittington.  And first and foremost, I would 

like to thank you for -- that you all for your time.  I 

understand the reasons why I'm here today is because of 

my extensive criminal history.  But allow me to tell you 

what I've been doing with my life in the last 10 months.   

  May 5th, 2016, I free-willingly accepted the 

WIN Court program overseen by Judge Cynthia Leung, and 

it has been the life-changing experience I needed.  In 

this time span, I have completed We Care and West Care's 

extensive inpatient substance abuse programs.  I 

attended the American Leadership Camp and completed it.  

And, most recently, I graduated from Hope for Prisoners.  

I am also scheduled to take my GED test next week.   

  Today, I am a more reliable and dependable 

person than I have been in 14 years.  By staying 

connected with my West Care alumni, I have a great 

support team.  And by my actively participating in Hope 
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for Prisoners workshop, shops, I have acquired a 

personal mentor that I currently am mapping out my 

dreams and visions with, and where people like John 

Ponder and Captain McDerris believe in me.  God is doing 

something great with my life.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  I also was given a letter 

from my court and just some certificates I received, if 

you'd like to see them. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I would like to see 

them.  

  (Items were handed to Board Member Collins.) 

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  And there's also one in the 

back of that.  

  (The items were reviewed.) 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Here, ma'am (returned 

items).   

  Mr. Batchelor, are these felonies or 

misdemeanors? 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Mostly all misdemeanors, a 

couple of gross misdemeanors, but no felonies.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And what's the time 

frame, from the beginning to -- I know you have a 

current something in the system, but. 
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  MR. BATCHELOR:  The oldest one was a petty 

larceny conviction in 2003.  And it goes up to the 

current and possession of drug paraphernalia case.  

  And one other thing to add, it does say we did 

not receive her fingerprints.  We did receive her 

fingerprints since the report was made.  So we have 

them, and they do confirm everything that she told us.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And was anything left out 

of the application process; was everything fully 

disclosed?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yes, she listed everything.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are there any questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  

Just a comment.   

  Ms. Whittington, as you know, as part of this, 

we look at two things, forthcoming and recency.  I 

applaud you for being forthcoming. 

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That always helps you.  

Unfortunately, for me -- I can't speak for the other 

Board members -- I'd like some more distance between 

your last event and coming before the Board.  And, also, 

you also have an outstanding case.  And I'm unaware if 

the Board ever granted with an outstanding case out 

there.   
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  You're definitely on the right track.  I hope 

to see you before us someday, too.  We'll see how the 

other Board members feel.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I appreciate your honesty.  

That goes a long way with me.  And I'll be in your court 

the next time you come back.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board 

questions, comments?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I would just like to 

make the comment that, you know, you have a significant 

history here, but the fact that there should be some 

time between this last incident and your future request 

for a guard card.  Please do not stop doing anything 

that you're doing, because you're definitely headed in 

the right direction.  And I, too, will be on your side 

if you're not voted in today.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Anything else?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Mr. Chair, I also confer 

with the statements of the other two Board members.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that we 
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deny the appeal but, also, that the applicant knows that 

she is more than willing to put in again, possibly a 

year down the road.  And let's get all your court cases 

adjudicated.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  That's item number 52 for 

Ashley Whittington.  So we have a motion, and we have a 

second.  And Board comments?   

  Nothing.  All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Okay.  The denial has been upheld.  And you 

have the ability to reapply in a year.  

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And please take to heart 

the comments of the Board members. 

  MS. WHITTINGTON:  I do.  Thank you all.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And good luck to you.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Now, for those of you who 

have already been sworn, the next up, going this 

direction (indicating), this side of the room, who's 

already been sworn in?  

 Would you come forward, sir.   

 Would you state your name and spell your last 

name.  

  MR. HEARNE:  Stephen Hearne, H-E-A-R-N-E.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Let me find you here.  

Number 34.  Okay.  So we're on agenda item number 34, 

Stephen Hearne.  Who's the investigator on this case? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Can you give us 

some background on why Mr. Hearne was denied? 

  Please, sit down.  I'm sorry.  

  MR. HEARNE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  In back in 1984, he was convicted 

of a misdemeanor for carrying a loaded firearm in a 

public place.  He was originally denied in 2012 for 

carrying a loaded firearm.  On June 10th, 2013, he 

provided our office with court documents showing that 

the conviction was dismissed under 1203.4.  We then gave 

him the work card.  

 Since that time, our stance has changed on 

1203.4.  So he was again denied when he tried to renew 
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his work card this year.  And so now he's being brought 

before the Board for approval.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  His current work card does not 

expire -- I think, it expires next week or --   

  MR. HEARNE:  Yes. 

  MS. DONALD:  Yes.  And he disclosed it.  We 

have court documents.  And that was the only arrest and 

conviction on his record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So I got the 

chronology right, he applied in 2012, and we denied him? 

  MS. DONALD:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And then he got taken 

care of over 1203.4? 

  MS. DONALD:  Yeah, from the court, showing it 

was dismissed under 1203.4.  So then Investigator 

Yarborough gave him a card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  So now he's up for renewal. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  And because it's on his record 

and, you know, we changed our stance on 1203.4.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got it.  Okay.  

  MR. HEARNE:  And just to explain a little bit 

of the background, first of all, it was over 30 years 
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ago.  And back then, I lived in Wyoming, Cheyenne, 

Denver, that area, working for different cable 

companies, doing advertising, and did a lot of hunting 

back then.  And we always had a pistol we kept, because 

there were a lot of rattlesnakes when we go hunting, so.  

  I had to come to California to hire some people 

in Palm Springs for a company, and I just forgot to take 

the pistol out of the glove compartment.  It was a 

little .22 that shoots rat shot.  Which wouldn't kill 

anybody.  It would probably upset them.  But, you know, 

there was no intention of trying to hide it or anything.  

I just forgot.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other 

questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Where are you currently 

employed?  

  MR. HEARNE:  I'm not employed with any security 

now.  When I went to apply for my new card, I was going 

to get some part-time work, mainly extra money to help 

out my kids.  I lost my daughter last year.  She has six 

kids.  And so I'm trying to help them.  The father is a 

pilot, also a veteran, been to Afghan three times.  And 

they just need extra money.   

  And so I wanted to get a part-time, you know, a 

couple hundred dollars a week, working security.  Which 
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I'm very well-versed in.  I was in intelligence in the 

Marines in Vietnam.  And it's just, that's it, just earn 

some extra money.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  And for staff, no 

other issues in the last 33 years? 

  MS. DONALD:  None.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'm willing to make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  None in the north.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you, sir.  You're 

up, Mr. Flynn.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that we 

grant the appeal based on the incident was over 33 years 

ago, there's been no other issues, and he's been 

forthcoming.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Got a motion.  Is there a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 
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 Carries unanimously.  

  MR. HEARNE:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you. 

  MR. HEARNE:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Stay on this side 

of the room.  Who's been sworn in?  

 Come on forward, please.  

 MR. INGRAM:  51. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you say your name and 

spell your last name? 

  MS. WEEKLEY:  Trumyia Weekley, W-E-E-K-L-E-Y.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And you're number 51 on 

the agenda.  Make yourself comfortable. 

  Who's the investigator on the case? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Why did we term? 

  MS. DONALD:  Ms. Weekley had been made 

complete.  She was working for a licensee.  But we 

received information shortly after showing that her 

arrests and convictions were indeed felonies.  So her 

work card was revoked.   

  When we got her fingerprints back, it didn't 

show on there.  But we had received some paperwork 

showing that it was felonies, she was convicted.  She 
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did disclose them.  And this was back in 2006.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What are they?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  Credit card fraud and conspiracy, 

so ID theft.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Was that a common case or 

a separate cases? 

  MS. DONALD:  I believe, it was two separate 

cases.  She received three years in prison.  Two years 

were suspended.  And then she had some fines as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is all this correct, 

Ms. Weekley?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  Yes, but they were together.  It 

was the same. 

  MS. DONALD:  Okay.  Yeah. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Same event? 

  MS. DONALD:  Two counts. 

  MS. WEEKLEY:  Yes. 

  MS. DONALD:  Two counts, same case.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there anything that 

you want to add?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  I just wrote a little note for 

you guys.  As you said, I was charged with credit card 

fraud and ID theft and conspiracy.  That took place in 

Zephyr County.  And I was sentenced to two years for 
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each charge, and one year and 11 months was suspended, 

and I did two months at Zephyr County jail. 

  Since the juvenile behavior, I have gotten my 

associates and majoring in criminal justice, receiving a 

3.94 GPA.  I have not gotten in any trouble since.  And 

I understand this was a criminal act I acted in.  And 

this is, by far, not in my character by any means. 

  And I apologize with all my heart for acting so 

juvenile.  I have learned a lot and been through a lot 

since this incident.  I made it this far after what 

happened by seeing a psychiatrist for six years and went 

through anger management at the V.A. Hospital in 

St. Louis, Missouri.  As of today, I've been clean four 

years, of marijuana.   

  I recently moved to Las Vegas, Nevada so that 

my daughters could have a better life.  Prior to my move 

to Las Vegas, I worked in a warehouse -- excuse me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  No problem.  Take your 

time.   

  MS. WEEKLEY:  I worked in the warehouse.  And 

I've done everything to my part to be a productive 

member of society.  At my previous employer, I received 

several recommendations for being outstanding.  I was 

also given many tasks that were outside my job duties 

and completed them satisfactorily.  I was also a 
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dependable employee, having two years of continued 

perfect attendance.  I was a valuable team member.  

  Being short is hindering my ability to provide 

for my family and take care of our home.  I knew there 

would be consequences for my actions, but I have also 

completed by sentence satisfactorily.  I have also been 

a law-abiding citizen since this time.  I have not 

gotten in any trouble since, nor have I been in trouble 

prior to.  

 I hope you grant me my guard card so that I can 

continue to provide for my family and be an outstanding 

citizen.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  What was your 

age when this case got started?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  I was 24, 12 years ago.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  24?  Okay. 

  MS. WEEKLEY:  24, 26.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And when were you off 

paper, totally?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  When I was released, I was able 

to pay the restitution.  And so I wasn't on probation or 

nothing, they just let me move back home.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And that was when, when 

was that?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  2007.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions?  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  I brung paperwork, if you guys 

need to see it, also.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  That's okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  The 2009 charge, it says 

unknown, the disposition is unknown. 

  MS. DONALD:  It came back from her fingerprints 

that she had cannabis, criminal trespass.  She did 

disclose it.  She did say both charges were dismissed.  

There was no disposition on the fingerprints.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 Entertain a motion.  

 I move that Trumyia Weekley, the denial issued 

be overturned and that she be issued a work card.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion and a 

second.  Any Board comment or question on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  Congratulations.  

  MS. WEEKLEY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  
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  MS. WEEKLEY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Let's see.  I'm going to 

this side of the room now, furthest from the front.  Who 

has been sworn in?  

 Okay.  Would you come forward, sir.  

  MR. MORRISSEY:  Can I say, I want to give 

character witness.  Can I come up?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You want to be a witness 

for him?  

  MR. MORRISSEY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have you been sworn as 

well?  

  MR. MORRISSEY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Come forward. 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  My name's Arthur Nagrampa, 

N-A-G-R-A-M-P-A.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a seat.  

  We're on agenda number 39.  Okay.  Who was the 

investigator on this case?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Mr. Nagrampa was denied for a 

1998 alien smuggling conviction, which was a felony.  

And he was sentenced to 15 months in prison, three years 

supervised, federal release.  That's Mr. Nagrampa's only 
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conviction, in 1998.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Was it disclosed?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  No, he did not disclose it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Could you tell us 

a little bit of information about the conviction and the 

reason for the nondisclosure. 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  When I was released, they had 

sent me a document.  So I went to a halfway house and a 

Shasta court.  At that point, I did not know I was 

convicted of a felony.  I thought it was just a -- just 

a conviction.  My lawyer that represented me never gave 

me any information.  So I had no knowledge if it was a 

felony or not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  I know I did something wrong.  I 

was convicted, did some time, so.  I didn't know what 

the -- how bad it was.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What have you done 

for employment? 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  Since then? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Since then?   

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  Oh, I worked for Miramar Pontiac 

for like four and a half years.  Then an issue for the 

family when we moved here, a death, like my father 

passed away.  And I started working at Santa Fe's.  And 
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then they did a background check there.  And they didn't 

find anything wrong, there were no convictions.  So when 

I had to fill out the application for this job, I didn't 

put it down.   

  And I worked at a detail shop.  I worked at the 

theater for a year and a half.  And then my mother 

passed away.  And then more issues popped up.  And then 

that's when I got this job at Security Unlimited.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Did you have, 

physically, a sheriff's card or a gaming card? 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  They gave me a work, a 

registration card thing, a provisional.  So if they 

issued that, why, they should have found something 

already, right?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  When did you get that? 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  A month before I started 

working.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  What 

about the sheriff's card, the work at the Santa Fe, when 

did you get that? 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  They didn't give me anything.  I 

just worked there.  They just gave me the job.  I 

started working.  It was for maintenance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  The Santa Fe 

Casino? 
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  MR. NAGRAMPA:  Yeah, theater.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Theater.  Oh, okay.  All 

right.  All right.  And, sir, what's your name?  

  MR. MORRISSEY:  I'm Vincent Morrissey.  But 

I've lived in Sun City Anthem in Henderson since 2005.  

And I met Art, we both worked together, 11 years ago.  

I've known, I've known Art for 11 years.  And we worked 

together at Pat Clark GMC Pontiac dealership.  And, 

eventually, they closed their doors. 

  And the reason I got involved with the security 

issue is that Art asked me to loan him the money for the 

investigative background.  And I had known previously 

that he had a conviction in San Diego.  He's told me 

about that years ago.  So I asked him, I said, "Was this 

a felony?"  And he said, no, he didn't think it was a 

felony.  And I said -- he said, "I've never received any 

documentation.  Nobody's ever told me it was a felony." 

  And then I remembered he was working at the 

Santa Fe Casino, and I said, well, certainly they did a 

background check on him.  So if he had a felony, that 

would come up.   

  Then I looked at the application, and it said 

they were really interested in felonies of a serious 

nature, like maybe a violence or a horrific crime.  And 

what he was involved with wasn't anything like that.  So 
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I felt confident to saying, "You know, I don't think you 

have a felony."  And if there is a problem, it's not a 

serious felony like what they're concerned about on his 

application.  So he put it in.   

  And what he started, he -- what I can tell you 

about Art is he's just an easygoing guy.  He's -- I've 

never seen him angry, upset.  I wish I could be like 

that.  You know, things don't bother him.  He takes life 

as it comes.   

  And he hasn't been blessed like most of in 

life.  He's presently on welfare.  He's got -- he's back 

on his -- to pay his child support.  He's going to be 

homeless in a few days if he can't find employment.  

It's hard for him to find employment, in the economy 

that it was.  It's better now. 

 But he -- the security job is important, not 

only because of the financial aspect, but it gave him 

pride, and he felt like he was accomplishing something.  

And it was evidenced in his job performance.  In fact, 

he's got a job waiting for him at Unlimited Security.  

If he can get reinstated, he can go back to work 

immediately.  Other, when he was on the site, other 

people, other companies would offer him positions based 

on his performance. 

 And I'm asking, I'm begging that he can get 
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back into the security work, which he's good at, he can 

do, and he can get back to being a productive citizen in 

society, get off welfare and pay his bills.   

 And I thank you for listening, and I thank you 

for your consideration.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you. 

  Is there anything else you'd like to add, 

Mr. Nagrampa? 

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  No.  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'm going move to go 

ahead and uphold the appeal and issue Mr. Nagrampa, 

Arthur Nagrampa his work card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Uphold the appeal?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  No, I'm sorry.  Overturn 

the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Sorry.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  No problem.  There's a 

motion to overturn the appeal, the denial.  Is there a 

second?  

 I'll second.  There's a motion and a second to 
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overturn the denial.  Any Board questions or comments on 

the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye."  Aye.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Aye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All opposed, say "no."  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Two to two.  So the 

motion fails.  You're welcome to reapply in a year.  

  MR. NAGRAMPA:  Thank you. 

  MR. MORRISSEY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you very much.  

  Let's see.  Next, who's been sworn on this side 

of the room?  Sir, please.  

  MR. WALLACE:  My name is Chris Wallace.  Last 

name is W-A-L-L-A-C-E.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Have a chair.  

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And which item do we have 

here?   

  MS. DONALD:  49.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  49.  Who's the 

investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Why did we deny 
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Mr. Wallace? 

  MS. DONALD:  We denied Mr. Wallace.  He stated 

he served five months in federal custody and was 

sentenced to five years probation for an embezzlement or 

misapplication by a bank employee.  He was convicted of 

a felony.  He did disclose this.  This was in 2002.  

 And then, additionally, in 2006, he was 

arrested and convicted of domestic violence.  He was 

fined, had to do some community service.  So he is not 

firearm-eligible.  And he did not disclose that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. Wallace, 

you're familiar with what she's --   

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  -- talked about?  

  MR. WALLACE:  If I could first just introduce 

myself.  My name is Chris Wallace.  I just moved here 

from the Syracuse, New York area and Auburn, New York.  

I moved out of Las Vegas in 2011.  I've lived in 

Las Vegas from 2000 all the way to 2011.  I moved to 

Syracuse, because my mother, she was dying of a liver -- 

she had liver cancer.  And she passed away in 2012.  So 

I moved here to take care of her.  

 Since my conviction, I've worked for the State 

of New York, for the Office of Children and Family 

Services.  It was a juvenile probation and juvenile 
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detention center.  I worked there for two years.  I also 

ran a group home for another two years out there in that 

area.  

 The reason why I didn't disclose the domestic 

violence now is because, when they did the extensive 

background check, the judge said after five years that 

that would come off my case.   

 The reason, what happened on that is I've never 

done drugs a day in my life.  My girlfriend at the time 

had drugs at the house.  And I was on federal probation.  

I was ending the relationship.  And the reason, the 

reason the domestic violence came in, in fact, I was 

holding her down on my bed because she was trying to cut 

her wrists.   

 And the reason why I went to jail is because 

they came, they knew I was on federal probation.  I was 

the one that called the police.  I called the police 

because, number one, I knew the drugs were in the house.  

Number two, I was holding her down on her will because I 

didn't want her to kill herself.  And our daughter was 

in the home.   

 So they took me, they took to jail.  The next 

day, my probation officer got me out.  Within two weeks 

after that, I got off federal probation completely.  The 

judge asked me do I want to do a deferred program?  I 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

105 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

said, sure, I'll do a deferred program.  I took the 

classes.  I successfully completed that.  He said within 

five years it'll be off my record. 

 When I applied in New York, that did not come 

up at all.  And I did disclose, you know, that I did go 

to federal prison for stealing the money from the bank.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. WALLACE:  Currently here, I'm working for 

Pepsi through Kelly Services.  So I work at 4:00 a.m. 

till about 2:30 in the morning.  So I did go to work  

last night and just came here this morning so I could be 

here in front of you guys. 

  I also coach a semi-pro professional team here, 

the Las Vegas Spartans.  We have about 45 guys that have 

been in and out of jail and getting in off the streets.  

And I'm just trying to keep them positive and keep them 

away from doing violent things.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Thank you.   

  Any questions?  

 Your lack of disclosure on the 2006 domestic 

battery was because you -- 

  MR. WALLACE:  I thought it came off my record 

and it wasn't going to be disclosed.  I would have, you 

know, came forthright and told them.  Because the only 

problem I've ever had was the one I was convicted for, 
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that I went to federal prison for.  The reason being, 

that I went -- they didn't say it was domestic violence, 

that I went that way, because I was on federal 

probation.  And, but I did admit, I did, held her down, 

to keep her from killing herself, yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And there was no 

conviction on the battery? 

  MS. DONALD:  There was.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There was? 

  MS. DONALD:  Yes, he was convicted.  It was a 

misdemeanor.  So he is not firearm-eligible.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other 

questions? 

 Hear a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Wallace --  

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- you heard my prior 

comments with the other applicants.  Two things the 

Board looks at is forthcoming --  

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- as well as the recency.  

I appreciate your comments.  That's a serious charge.  

Please understand.  And I respect your opinion.  But 

that's your opinion.  And I'm sure the other party has 

another opinion, as well as the courts, for you to be 
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convicted.  

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  If you come back in a year 

and you disclose everything, I will think completely  

different than I'm thinking today.  

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That is a serious charge, 

especially before this licensing Board, concerning the 

type industry that we're in. 

  MR. WALLACE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So I'll make a motion to 

deny the appeal based on the recommendation of staff.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I have a motion.  Is 

there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions or comments on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Passes unanimously.  The denial is upheld.  

Thank you.  

  MR. WALLACE:  You said I can reapply, you said, 

in about a year?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  In a year.  That's the 
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statute. 

  MR. WALLACE:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  In a year, you can be 

reconsidered anew.  

  MR. WALLACE:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. WALLACE:  Thank you for your time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  On this side of the room, 

who's already been sworn?  Come forward, please.  

  MR. ELIAS:  I'm Mark Mendoza Elias, E-L-I-A-S.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Have a chair, 

please. 

  I've got a notice for me to check on a 

conflict, because, I think, this is the applicant.  

 Did you start to go to work for Zane 

Investigations? 

 MR. ELIAS:  No, for Speedy Recovery.  

 MR. INGRAM:  It's 30. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Oh, 30.  I got you mixed 

up with somebody else.  Okay.  Never mind, then.  You're 

not the right guy.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  What's your name again?  

  MR. ELIAS:  Elias, E-L-I-A-S, Mark Mendoza 

Elias.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  That's where we were at.   
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  The reason, the reason that there's some 

confusion here is I, as a member, am in the industry.  

And there was an employee who was, apparently, hired by 

my company, whose work card was denied.  And in order 

for me to determine if I have a conflict of interest -- 

apparently, we were fined by the PILB.  And we, 

apparently, paid the citation.  And, but I need to just 

make sure that I don't have a conflict with whoever it 

is that is at issue.  

  MR. INGRAM:  My apologies.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So that's why the 

question.  Because at that point in time, I've got to 

determine whether or not I should vote on that 

particular thing.  And I thought it was you.  No 

problem.   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So we're good on this one.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Well, I am.  I mean I am 

so I can vote.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  He's not the conflict.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  He's not the conflict, 

yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  I was a little 

confused.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So we're on number 30.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sorry about that.  

  MR. ELIAS:  I was nervous for a while, but.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Who was the 

investigator on the case?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  

Mr. Elias was denied for a 2012 carrying a concealed 

weapon conviction.  It was a misdemeanor.  He received 

60 days in jail, a fine, and had to forfeit the weapon.  

  And, also, in 2010, he was convicted of 

possession of drugs.  And for that, he received 

community service and counseling.   

  And, also, Mr. Elias received a DUI, 2013.   

  All misdemeanors.  And he did list all three 

convictions on his application.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So the denial was based 

upon course and conduct?   

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Based on a weapons conviction.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  On the weapons 

conviction.  Okay.  

 Mr. Elias, can you tell us about any of these 

charges?  

  MR. ELIAS:  Well, with the drug charges and all 

that, at the time I was unemployed.  I was a little 

young, just making mistakes in life.  That changed.  

I've been seven years clean, off drugs, did a little 360 
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with my life. 

  With the weapon charge, I got off work.  I was 

work with Bumper Medic.  One of my employees couldn't 

find my box cutters, so my boss gave me just a 

pocketknife, so opened up boxes to do the bumpers and 

paint them on put them on cars.  I forgot I had it in my 

pocket.   

  That night, we went out for an employee 

birthday.  And one of the guys, there was a little 

scuffle with security.  But we were trying to break it 

up, but they called the cops.  And I totally forgot I 

had it.  And which I went to court.  The bouncers forgot 

to search me for weapons.  And they ended up guarding 

it, the charge, you know, with all that stuff there.  

And I just did all my time and all that.  

 But since then, the last charge I had, I moved 

out to California, got homeless for a while.  My brother 

and my mom kicked me out, just drugs and all that.  I 

was homeless.  My dad found me, got me a job out there.  

I worked for Kanapis, and then I worked for Shelfsville 

and Louie's Landscaping.  I lost my job at Shelfsville 

about a year ago because of just low, low timing.  I was 

just a helper at the time.  And then my brother got a 

job back here.  So we moved back here.   

 And I recently got hired at Speedy Recovery, 
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which is a family friend that owns it, a repo place.  I 

was working in the yard.  But they had to let me go 

because I didn't have a word card.  And they didn't 

think I needed a work card to work in the yard, which is 

cleaning vehicles out and getting the property back.  

And so that's why I'm here today.   

 But since then, I've changed a lot of things in 

my life.  I'm paying child support, getting custody back 

of my daughter.  I finally got my own apartment, finally 

got a car.  And I just changed a lot.  Because I had to 

give up the drugs and alcohol, because I almost died 

from pneumonia.  I got lime disease.  So my doctor said 

I can't do none of that stuff no more.  I can't eat the 

way I was eating.  I just changed a lot of things, the 

way I was living.  So.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And what about the 

DUI?  

  MR. ELIAS:  The DUI, which one, 2013?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes.  

  MR. ELIAS:  That one, no.  No, well the one in 

California they said not to -- well, I listed it.  But, 

I think, that's the one.  The 2010 was a drug and DUI.  

The one, that one was just I had a couple beers, and I 

was driving home, and then, when I got pulled over for  

an illegal U-turn, I was like 1.0 over.  And they were 
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going to let me go, because I passed all the tests, but 

it was already called in.  I went in.  They let me go 

about an hour later.  I did all that, paid all the fines 

on that, too.  

  But since them, I've cleaned off everything.  

I've changed my whole thing around.  I'm doing none of 

that stuff no more.  I got a girlfriend, and I got my 

two stepsons.  And then, right now, I'm trying to get 

custody of my daughter back.  So, in our household, my 

girlfriend really doesn't allow alcohol or nothing like 

that.  So.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Okay.  Any other 

Board questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chair, I have a 

question directed to Director Ingram.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Do we have the ability to 

limit the work card?  The applicant's stating that he 

does work in a licensed business, but his scope of 

responsibility is strictly in the car yard.  He's not 

repo'ing.  He's not exercising as a security officer or 

a repossessor with the public.  

  MR. INGRAM:  In the past, the Board has placed 

limits on a work card.  And at that time, legal counsel 

believed that that was okay.  The examples that I'll 
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give you that the Board has limited work cards has not 

been something similar to this.  It's been an individual 

who was a peace officer status wanting to do nothing 

more than mystery shopping, which was not seen as a 

conflict with their duties as a peace officer.  

 So those are the only limits placed on work 

cards that I'm currently aware of in the four and a half 

years that I've been the Executive Director.  

 Counsel, do you have any input on that?  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I would say, without some 

further review, which I can do if necessary, but the 

caution I would put on the limit is it -- it goes beyond 

what the license is probably described as in your 

statutes.  And I don't know that the Board wants to walk 

down the road of this, essentially, creating a different 

type of license by limiting, by granting an existing 

license with limits.  

 It can open all a lot of doors to needing to do 

that in the future for any number of things, as well as 

having that license.  I'm concerned, I guess, with some 

of the enforcement, because the license itself is 

specified by statute as allowing a certain thing.  And 

I'm not sure exactly how the Board can curtail what is 

allowed. 

 MR. INGRAM:  That would be the only other 
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comment I would make, Board Member Flynn, is that if a 

work card is limited, we, as Board staff, don't have an 

ability to monitor or flag if somebody was to go to work 

for another agency doing, you know, unlimited, either 

security work, private investigations, repossessor.  The 

onus would be on the individual with the card to notify 

us.  But we would really have no way of monitoring that.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So if they applied for 

a -- if they go to work for another company, they don't 

have to report that to the P.I. Board?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Well, the licensee is responsible 

for updating their roster.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  But not the employee?  

  MR. INGRAM:  But not the employee, correct. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  That 

answered it.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  How long have you been 

on probation for the DUI charge?  

  MR. ELIAS:  In '13, they never put me on 

probation.  It just, it was just pay the fines, and that 

was it.  The probation one in 2010, it was a community 

service, and I did a little bit of time, and then they 

released me after I paid all my fines and all that.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Because the record is 

indicating that there was a three-year probation for 
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2013, which would have been 2016.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yes, that's what the 

fingerprints state.  It was stopped in municipal court, 

and his conviction, probation, three years probation, 

fine, restitution, for a .08 DUI in 2013.  

  MR. ELIAS:  I paid all the fines and all that.  

They never -- I never checked on it.  Nobody, they never 

told me nothing.  They just said keep paying, go 

downtown, pay, pay, pay.  And after I paid, it was done.  

  MR. SALADINO:  We have seen that to be very 

common in California.  They do a thing called informal 

probation, whereas it's noted in the courts, but there's 

no probation officer to check in with.  It's just noted 

in the courts that it's an informal probation.  And, you 

know, it just kind of --  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  It's not a supervised 

probation or anything like that?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Right, yeah, it's not 

supervised.  They call it informal.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay. 

  MR. ELIAS:  They just enforce it when I don't 

pay.  Like if I don't pay, then they'll come.  But once 

the payments keep going, going, they're just paid off 

until you're done with it.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions? 

 Entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, I'll make a motion.  

Mr. Elias, I was hoping that we could do something 

different.  But I can't, based on statute.  And you 

heard the comments earlier about forthcoming and 

recency.  And you were forthcoming.  But I'd like to see 

more time and distance.   

  I hope that you're involved in a program.  

Because you just don't quit that kind of behavior.  And 

if you're not, take my words to heart.   

  And then I will support staff and deny the 

appeal.  That's my motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any questions or comments 

on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

No.  

 You're eligible to reapply in a year.   

 MR. ELIAS:  Thank you. 
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 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. ELIAS:  Thank you.  You guys have a nice 

day. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  You, too. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  On this side 

of the room, who's been sworn?  

  MR. INGRAM:  It looks like everybody.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Anybody, anybody on that 

side of the room been sworn?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  The gentleman in the 

plaid's been here since this morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Please.  I'm sorry.  Can 

you tell us your name, please? 

  MR. AYALA:  My name is Alfred Ayala.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And how do you spell your 

last name? 

  MR. AYALA:  A-Y-A-L-A.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  20? 

  MR. SALADINO:  28. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number 28 on the 

agenda.  Who's the investigator? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And why did we deny 

Mr. Ayala? 

  MR. SALADINO:  The application, or the 
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applicant was denied for a couple felony, or 

convictions, 1993, 1994 and 1996.  He did list a 2010 

DUI that was dismissed.  In 1992, he was arrested for a 

misdemeanor, taking a vehicle without the owner's 

consent, obstruct with an officer.  The first charge, 

for taking the vehicle, was three years probation.  The 

second charge states probation.  

 Then, on December 23rd of 1992, he was 

convicted of taking a vehicle without the owner's 

consent and receiving stolen property.  The receiving 

stolen property was a felony.  He received three years 

in prison.  

 And January 21st, 1996, again for taking a 

vehicle without the owner's consent, another felony, 16 

months in prison.   

 A December 7th, 1999, felon in possession of a 

firearm.  The court showed that he was eligible for 

parole on that one out of San Bernardino.   

 And then on February 6th of 2006, he was 

arrested for possession of burglary tools, which was a 

misdemeanor, and the courts did dismiss that.  

 The applicant did list a 2010 DUI out of 

Las Vegas, which was dismissed, but did not disclose the 

past criminal history.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Thank you.  
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 Mr. Ayala, well, why didn't you put down the 

'90s stuff when you made your application?   

  MR. AYALA:  It was so far back, it was like 20 

years ago, so I -- they said just put the recent, that's 

seven years back.  That's what the office told me.  So 

what I put down was driving, the reckless driving, you 

know, while I was DUI, I was drunk.  But I put the 

reckless driving.  That's what I put.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  When you said when 

the office told you, what office was that?  

  MR. AYALA:  It was when I applied for the 

license.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It was a state office or 

for an employer?  

  MR. AYALA:  For the licensing board.  I went up 

there, and when I went and did everything, she told me 

just put down seven years.  So what I did is I put 

down -- that's what I put.  Because it was within seven 

years.  That's what I had had.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  So 

what do you recall about the '93, '94 and '96 cases?  

  MR. AYALA:  Oh, that was, that was so -- I was 

so dumb, you know.  I'm a lot different.  It's been 20 

years ago.  I've been working for Fiberact Construction 

for 10 years, doing underground water pipes for the 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

121 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

government and for the state.  And for the state, I 

recently gave it up on December 23rd, last year.  I work 

for Lowe's now.  I'm 100 percent, totally, totally 

different, you know.  Stealing cars is like a -- it's a 

totally -- it's a joke to me, because I'm totally 

different.  I'm just, I'm all about working and 

providing for my kids and prospering in life.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other 

questions? 

 Entertain a motion.  

 I'll move that we uphold the denial of 

Alfred A. Ayala.  That's my motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  There's a motion 

and a second.  Any Board questions or comments?  

 The reason that I voted to uphold the denial 

was for the application process is reasonably clear that 

all arrests and convictions are to be disclosed so they 

can be adequately considered.  And there is nothing in 

the process that indicates time.  And, you know, since 

there was no disclosure, we can only take the position 

that we were probably being misled about the criminal 

history.  So my motion is based upon the fact that the 
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felony cases, even though they were that old, were not 

disclosed.  

 Any other Board questions, comments on the 

motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All in favor of 

the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 Passes unanimously.  You're eligible to come 

back in a year and reapply.  Disclose everything.  

  MR. AYALA:  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  Anybody else on -- I'm sorry, sir.  Come on 

forward.  Thank you.  

  MR. MAGEE:  My name is Tyjohn Magee.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Tyjohn?  

  MR. MAGEE:  Tyjohn McGee.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.   

  MR. MAGEE:  And I do have some character 

letters.  I'd like to speak on my own behalf, but I do 

have -- I also brought an employer, my fiancee.  And I 

do want to say that I was --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a seat.  

  MR. MAGEE:  When I filled out the application, 
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I filled out the application to the best of my 

knowledge.  I put down the felonies.  I put down some 

arrests.  But I wasn't for sure like what date and time, 

whatnot, or what the allegations were.  So I just wrote 

like "by" or whatever, or something.  But that was just 

in case there was something that's like missing.  It 

wasn't intentional as far as not being forthcoming.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Who was the 

investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  At the time, we had very limited 

information on his arrests.  But since then, we have 

received the fingerprints back.  Let me see here.  He 

did disclose several of them.  He was convicted of a 

felony robbery in 1996, felony grand theft in 1995, 

felony forgery in 1995, and then, in '93, carrying a 

loaded firearm in a public place.  

 He disclosed those four arrests.  The firearm, 

we don't know if it was a misdemeanor or a felony.  The 

other three were felonies.   

 However, when we got his fingerprints back, he 

had several arrests that he didn't disclose from the 

2000s, starting with March of 2000, domestic violence, 

disposition unknown.   



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

124 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 2001 domestic violence.  His probation was 

terminated at that time.   

 2001, domestic violence, disposition unknown.  

 2003, contempt, disobeying court order, one 

count of the threatening, crime with intent to 

terrorize.  The prosecution rejected that for lack of 

evidence. 

 2003, driving while intoxicated.  No 

disposition.   

 2003, assault four, guilty, 90 days jail, with 

the jail sentence being suspended for 89 days, and he 

had a fine as well. 

 2004, he had another assault four.  That was 

dismissed. 

 2007, driving under the influence and reckless 

driving.  He was convicted of the DUI.  The reckless 

driving was dismissed.   

 And 2008, driving under the influence, guilty, 

jailed and fined on that one.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  None of those were 

disclosed?  

  MS. DONALD:  No. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. McGee, what 

reason would there be for the lack of disclosure in that 

2000 range?  
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  MR. MAGEE:  I'm pretty sure that I have.  

Because there was the two parts to the application.  And 

it was where it says felony arrests, and I remember on 

the application that's where I list those.  And those 

are the only ones that's coming up right now that I put 

on the application.   

  But there was a separate part, all things that 

you have been arrested for, and I put, disclosed 

everything else that I had been arrested for on the 

second part, which is a whole nother paragraph.  And 

that's the part that's missing.   

  And I don't know.  That's the part that I was 

explaining in the beginning.  Because there was two 

parts.  There was two different parts to that 

application.  And I'm sure, I thought I put something 

in, I put something, because I scribbled over to the 

corner and everything.  Those charges right there was 

just the felony part, that first paragraph.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. MAGEE:  That's all. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Did he do a hard, hard  

application, on paper?   

  MS. DONALD:  That I'm not sure.  I don't have 

the copy if he did it.  I do know what I wrote down, the 

four arrests he disclosed were, you know, I think that 
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he had disclosed some.  And those were the felonies.  

Other than the carrying a loaded firearm. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  But in the 

application format, is the next box something 

additional, as he's just said? 

  MS. DONALD:  Well, all it asks, felonies, gross 

misdemeanors.  At the bottom, list all other arrests, is 

what it says.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Chair?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sir?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I have a question.  Do we 

have a copy of what he's alleging?   

  MS. SALADINO:  We're getting it right now.  

  WOMAN IN LAS VEGAS:  I have one right here.  

  MS. DONALD:  Well, we need to see the things. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I've got questions.  

Looking and hearing about your background, there's two 

issues.  One, you went through a criminal phase in, 

obviously, 2000 that weren't good in your personal life.  

So you've had some issues.  Do you want to address all 

of those for me?  

  MR. MAGEE:  Okay.  When I was, when I was 

younger, in the situation with the felonies, I was being 
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responsible for my little brother and my little sister, 

and my sister was -- and my sister was caring for more 

than one child.  And I made some drastic, bad decisions.  

And I own that.  I made that mistake. 

  And I also pled guilty because, a lot of times, 

you know, the -- like the robbery was somebody owed me 

money, and then, but it became we threatened each other.  

And I have it, I have my -- it's not even stipulated in 

the sheetwork, but I had a child with me at the time, 

and I was with a girlfriend, and I had her child with 

me.  And I wanted to protect to make sure nothing 

happened to this child.   

  Because in the neighborhood where we were at, 

there was gang violence over there, and you don't 

threatened nobody.  And the guy that it was -- and, 

basically, the guy had a gun.  But I took the gun from 

the guy, which is not stipulated.  And that was part of 

the reason why I was arrested.  I took the gun.  I took 

it.  And then he left the bike, or whatever, and I just 

drove off and went home.  But I punched him to protect, 

to keep him from -- I seen a bulge in his shirt. 

  And that was the circumstance.  I pled guilty 

because that whatever, the lawyer told me that there was 

no way, because there was no witness in my behalf.  The 

witnesses seen me punch him first.  And it was my word 
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against his.  So I pled guilty.  I didn't know it was 

going to hinder my life for the rest of my life. 

  The receiving, I seen the car.  I got in the 

car.  It was a car with the keys in it.  I got in the 

car, and I drove, and I was driving, I was joyriding.   

  The forgery, I took some checks that somebody 

gave to me, and they told me, "Oh, you can just put 

these in your bank, and we can get some money."  I put 

those checks in my account.  I made that mistake trying 

to get some money off the bank, needed some money. 

  And listening to the wrong crowd, being around 

the wrong people, and other circumstances, was just to 

provide and look after.  Here I am, going through foster 

homes and stuff, and didn't have no -- at the time, 

which I didn't even know I had, I didn't even know what 

I needed to get a job, or whatever.   

  Once I got out of prison, I had to relearn how 

to live over again, with a felony, and then it was 

frustrating, wanting a job.  I went and applied to temp 

services.  The temp services, I couldn't even move 

furniture when I got out of prison,  because it goes to 

residences. 

  So, but since then, I've got arrested and 

everything.  The DUI, the other question that you asked 

me, that situation was I was on parole.   
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  And one, the assault, later, that came in 2000, 

that one was I was at a bar.  I was at a bar.  But 

previous, I was with my ex-fiancee from California.  We 

got married to start our life over, got back together, 

rejoined from when I went to prison, before I went to 

prison.  And her ex-boyfriend, or whatever, that didn't 

want to take and back off, we was at the bar, or 

whatever.  We had been drinking.  And the guy started 

showing out, or whatever.  And we was standing 

face-to-face, and I punched him because I thought he was 

going to punch me. 

  I previously had a C1-C2 fractured neck.  So I 

can't take no blow to the neck.  It would paralyze me. 

I'm already temporarily paralyzed down my right side.  

So I acted out in defense in that.  And I regret it, of 

course.  

 And then they put me in alcohol -- they put me 

in alcohol assessments, which I passed.  And then I 

volunteered to go into outpatient, outpatient treatment, 

or whatever, for alcohol awareness.  And, plus, because 

of the DUI, or whatnot, I went on and went and did 

everything to assess myself to see if I had begun to 

start picking up with an alcohol problem.   

 And, but the domestic violence and everything 

for the rest of -- a lot of those charges are dismissed, 
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or whatnot, is because my ex-girlfriend, she would 

quickly call the police when she would see me with 

another female and have me arrested.  And then I'd go to 

court, and then they get dropped.  And then I'd go to 

court again, and then they get dropped.  It took -- I 

mean, and that's because I was in Washington state, and 

the state passed a law that if they come out for a 

domestic call, somebody has to go to jail regardless.  

So that was the situation.  

 But since then -- and my fiancee's here.  And I 

have been seeing her for over five years.  I've been 

heavily involved, you know, in church and ministry and 

stuff like that.   

 And I've been to counseling, self, put myself, 

volunteered to counseling, for one, not to only deal 

with my childhood, but to also deal with my -- also to 

deal with my being disabled.  Because when I was in a 

car accident in 2004, that severed the rest of my spine, 

and things.  And it took a lot to overcome that.   

 Then I lost a daughter in 2012.  And that's 

when I left Vegas and then decided to come back, after I 

went back to Seattle and came back here.   

 And since I've been in Las Vegas, I have not 

been in no more trouble, since I had a bad relationship 

and knowing now what a domestic relationship, signs of a 
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domestic relationship, from getting counseling, and 

stuff like that.   

 I've also got an associate's degree.  I had 

enrolled in my bachelor's, but it got too expensive.  I 

have the financial aid I got to pay back.   

 I've been working for a couple of different 

places, call centers and stuff like that.  But I 

realized that call centers is not for me.  It's kind of 

hard for me, you know, when people are being 

disrespectful on the phone.  Like one time, I was being 

disrespected on the phone, and I just couldn't take no 

more, and the supervisor wasn't -- nobody was around.  

So I just hung up the phone.  I warned, I told him more 

than several times I would hang up the phone.  I hung up 

the phone and everything.  But, unfortunately, it put me 

on the final for me to be dismissed from my call center 

job. 

 And I've always been a -- I want to, I want to, 

I really just want to give back to the community from -- 

you know, give back to the community by protecting those 

that's trying to do something in the community.  And 

that's all I ever do, is to protect my family, but I 

want to do it in the right way and be licensed.  I know 

I can't carry a concealed weapon.  And, therefore, you 

know, I've been a bouncer before, you know, voluntarily, 
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at bars and stuff like that in the past.   

 But did that answer your question, sir? 

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do you have the 

application?   

  MS. DONALD:  It looks like the 2000 battery was 

listed.  

  MR. MAGEE:  I do like to say, my charges, most 

of my charges, the felonies and stuff, was 20 years ago.  

These charges, the actual, the actual charge, as far as 

recent, for the most, it was 2003, or whatever, for DUI.  

That was, that was somewhat of a sacrosentence with the 

DUI, when I got convicted with that, because I left my 

drink unattended, and when I left.  Because I was 

working on cars and stuff back then.  It was a hobby.  

And I was showing off my car and stuff.  And I left my 

drink in the bar.  And, but it wasn't able to be proven 

in court that I was also drugged.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. MAGEE:  And the police officer told me to 

drive off while I was in the driver's seat laying back 

in the seat.  And I only lived three blocks away.  So I 

tried to attempt to drive.  I do recall I was speeding, 

because I was rushing.  But when the officer pulled me 

over, I actually blacked out and fell out of the car.  
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And they actually arrested me, fingerprinted, processed 

me, and brought me back home, because they said I was 

coherent.  But I wasn't.  It was too dangerous for me to 

be locked up at the time.  But by the time they gave me 

a court date to go in, there was nothing in my blood.  

So.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  We have an update on the 

application, if you'd like to hear it. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Please. 

  MS. DONALD:  Okay.  So we have a copy of what 

he wrote down.  He did disclose the 2003, 2004 assault.  

However, the other ones from 2000 were not disclosed.  

And he disclosed all the felonies. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  From the '90s.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board 

questions?  

 Okay.  It would be up to you if you'd like 

somebody to speak about your character at this juncture, 

if you want to call somebody, or.  

  MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  I would like to call my 

fiancee, for one, because the domestic, I know that if 

you can't handle your household and dealing in 

relationships --  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  MR. MAGEE:  -- that I would like for her to 

come up and speak on my behalf of how I am and how I 

deal with a personal relationship. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. MAGEE:  Her name is Danielle.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Danielle, will you come 

forward.  

  MR. INGRAM:  She did not stand when being 

sworn.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  I can swear her in now, though.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We'll need to swear you 

in so you can give sworn testimony.  All right.  Raise 

your right hand, please.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you swear that the testimony 

you're about to give and the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth?  

  MS. SCOTT:  Yes.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you tell us your name 

and spell your last name?  

  MS. SCOTT:  My name is Danielle, excuse me, 

Danielle Scott, S-C-O-T-T.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And what can you 
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tell us about your fiance? 

  MS. SCOTT:  He's a really good guy.  I wrote a 

letter in reference to him.  But he has a two-year-old 

daughter.  He -- her father is in her life, and he 

stepped up before we went, we came together, but as the 

role of her father.   

  Currently, I'm five months pregnant, you know.  

And we're trying to build -- you know, like a family 

structure, you know, a home and, you know, a mother and 

father, two-parent home, you know, to try to kind of 

beat out the statistics.   

  I'm working and paying by myself as of right 

now.  And it does get hard.  And I know he feels it as 

well.  I come home, I'm tired, and I still got to do it 

every day.  He helps a lot by taking my daughter to 

school.  I have to be at work at 5:30 in the morning.  

He gets up, gets her dressed.  And he still goes out and 

try to, you know, either look for jobs or, you know, to 

help me, to help his, you know, other friends and that 

own the businesses, to input something, to build.   

  And it would make it a lot easier if he was 

granted, because it wouldn't be just on me.  It would be 

a two-person household.  And, you know, that's all we're 

trying to do is build.   

  And I know he's humble from his past 
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experiences, and it made him, it gave him more of a 

drive to do what's right, you know.  He talks about, you 

know, a career.  You know, he wants to -- we want to go 

into real estate.  And we want to do group homes for, 

you know, troubled kids and, you know, people in and 

out, you know, the system, you know, to help.  

 So he's a good guy, and he's just really just 

looking for that, that one chance to start over.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Thank you.  

  Do you have anybody else? 

  MR. MAGEE:  Yes.  I'd like to call Scott.  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  How are you doing?  Scott 

Gatewood.  I haven't been sworn in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Come forward, 

please.  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have to have you get 

close enough where the microphone can pick you up good.  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  Sure.  I'm the licensee for Cobb 

Security.  I just, I've known Tyjohn since two 

thousand --   

  MS. BORDELOVE:  We need to swear him in. 

  MR. GATEWOOD:  What's it? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We got to get you sworn 

in.  
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  MR. GATEWOOD:  Oh, sure. 

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Raise your right hand. 

 MR. GATEWOOD:  Yes.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you swear that the testimony 

you're about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth?  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  I do.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And can yo spell your 

last name for the stenographer?  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  Yes.  Gatewood, G-A-T-E-W-O-O-D. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  Go ahead. 

  MR. GATEWOOD:  Okay.  I'd just like to say that 

I've known Tyjohn since 2006.  I know him to be one of 

the most honest, trustworthy people, with just a great 

temperament.  And he's great with children.  I know him 

to be a hardworking man, an honest man.  I truly believe 

that he's changed his life.  I believe in second 

chances.  And the person that I know is one of the 

people that I trust more than anyone else that I can 

think of.   

  So I can attest to his character.  And I'd 

appreciate the Board's consideration on our behalf.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Thank you.  

  MR. GATEWOOD:  Thank you.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any motion?  

 What number are we at?  

  MR. INGRAM:  It's 37.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It's 37.  Okay.  I move 

that we overturn the denial and issue a card to Tyjohn 

McGee.  Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion.  Any 

Board comment on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."   

  (Board members said "aye.")   

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  They'll issue you 

a card.  

  MR. MAGEE:  I just want to say thank you, and I 

really appreciate the opportunity to come in, just go to 

work, so I can take care, take care of my family.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Well, likewise, we're 

putting a lot of faith and hope in you that you don't 

prove us to be fools.  

  MR. MAGEE:  I promise.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MS. SCOTT:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Anybody else that's been 

sworn in?  Please come forward. 

  Make yourself comfortable.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Good afternoon.  My name's 

Ruben Rodriguez, last name R-O-D-R-I-G-U-E-Z.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  Who's the 

investigator?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  Investigator Woodruff in the 

north.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And what can you tell us 

about the denial?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Well --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  That's him.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Sorry.  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  I denied this applicant based on 

his January 13th, 2013 conviction of domestic battery 

based on two reasons.  First, the completion of the 

sentencing requirements was within three years.  And, 

secondly, the severity of the actions performed by 

Mr. Rodriguez were significant.  

 So I ran Mr. Rodriguez on SCOPE, and it listed 

the disposition on February 12th, 2014 as found guilty, 
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but nothing more.   

 Based on the date within three years, I 

requested court documents and the police report from 

Mr. Rodriguez.  I reviewed the court documents and the 

police report.  The police report recapped the morning 

in question and the interaction with Mr. Rodriguez's 

roommate.  One sentence caught my attention.  The report 

stated that Ruben began to yell that he was the 

ineligible of God and that his corpse will be rotting as 

he watches from above. 

 After reviewing all the documents I was 

provided, I denied the applicant.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. Rodriguez, do 

you remember the case in particular?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I really don't.  Because I was 

incredibly inebriated at the time.  I'm a completely  

different person now.   

  The reason why I'm here is because, because of 

the application, I've been offered a promotion in my 

current job right now.  Been working at a -- this 

third-party company that staffs all the production and 

events staff for live music venues in the city.  And I 

need a PILB card for that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Since then, prior to that, I've 
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maintained a job at the Clark County Parks and 

Recreation Department for a few years now.   

  I understand I made a huge mistake that night 

going out and partying too hard.  I'm a completely 

different person now.  I'm just trying to be a 

respectable person of society.  I feel, with this job, 

not only would I get more work, but further my career.  

And I seem to like life entertainment, you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Now, is your job 

with Parks and Rec, is that a full-time position?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  It's an on-call job.  It was 

part-time, but now that I got this other job, you know, 

I can't do both at the same time, but.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So you're physically not 

employed with them right now?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Not at the moment.  But like 

it's per event.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Like with this other job, I 

work three days a week.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Does your job with 

the city allow you to participate in the Public 

Employees Retirement System?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I'm not really sure that it is.  

But probably, yeah, because we do a lot of -- everything 
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from special events to foundation events, you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Whatever they have.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are you considered to be 

a city employee; do you get paid by the City of 

Las Vegas directly?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  No.  I know that it's like a 

government check that I get from them.  Like it says 

Clark County, you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So this conviction 

was in 2013, right?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And it's totally and 

completely done now?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yeah.  I got -- I took care of 

everything beforehand.  I did community service, anger 

management training.  Everything was done prior.  

Believe it or not, me and the roommate are still friends 

actually.  It's just that night.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Since then, I've kept a clean 

record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What, again, was the 

charge?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  Domestic battery.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So what was the 

nature of the physical altercation?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Argument.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Was there a physical 

altercation?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  We were just kind of wrestling.  

And he kicked me out of the house, he, you know, 

overpowered me, and called the cops on me, so, while I 

was trying to get in my room.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Well, and you were on 

probation for a while, right?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yeah, for a year.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  For a year?  Okay.  So 

that probation ended in 2014, '15?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And this was 

disclosed on the application?  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes.  I put -- I didn't know 

exact dates, but I put everything that happened, like, 

you know, all my charges that I know, because I didn't 

know dates.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  And I even provided further 

documents.  Like I got like scanned copies and submitted 

them.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Okay.  Any other 

Board questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  I have one.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Rodriguez --  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Go ahead. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Oh.  Go ahead.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Go ahead, Mr. Colbert.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  Investigator 

Woodruff, did the report list any injuries to the other 

party; and if so, was there any weapon involved or 

anything?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  Your indulgence for a moment, 

please.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Sure.  

 MR. WOODRUFF:  There was no weapon that I can 

see of that was listed.  And I believe that the only 

injuries were to Mr. Rodriguez.  As he was trying to 

break into the home, he cut up his hands as he was 

breaking out the windows to get to his roommate.  That's 

all the report states.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Okay.  Thank you.  No 

further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Mr. Flynn.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And, Mr. Rodriguez --   

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- I'm concerned that both 

those charges have involved substance.  You've been 

through substance abuse counseling, or?   

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  No, I didn't.  I didn't get 

charged or have any disciplinary or anything.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Well, that's a voluntary 

thing, and it proves your character, and you've been to 

substance abuse.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Oh.  I'm not a recreational 

user of any kind, just blacked out that night, the 

consumption of alcohol, overconsumption of alcohol.  

And --   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That's all right.  You 

answered my question.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Were these misdemeanors?  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  I believe so.  I believe, they 

were misdemeanors.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I had a DUI charge, but other 

than that.  

  MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes.  Yes, they were 

misdemeanors.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Nothing more.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'm prepared to make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Rodriguez, I 

appreciate your forthcoming.  I do want to see some more 

time and distance.  As you saw what we did with prior 

votes with the applicants, there are things going back 

to 1990s or 1980s.  So you're more than welcome to come 

back and apply again in a year. 

  But by motion's going to be to support staff 

and uphold the denial.  But we'll see what the rest of 

the Board does.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Have a seat.  That's just 

my motion.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board question 

or comment on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All opposed, say "no."  

No. 
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  Three to one.  You'll be entitled to come back 

in a year and reapply.  

  MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Is there anybody else 

that has been sworn prior?   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Can we take a five-minute, 

quick five-minute break?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can we take a five-minute 

break, please?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you. 

* * * * * 

(A break was taken, 12:01 to 12:11 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Are we ready up north?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  For the rest of 

the folks here that are scheduled to have a hearing 

regarding the registration being denied, we will need 

you to stand, raise your right hand, and be sworn.  

  MS. BORDELOVE:  Do you all swear today that the 

testimony you're going to give is the truth, the whole 

truth, and nothing but the truth?  

 (Applicants and witnesses present were sworn.)  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.   

  And when you're called forward, and I don't 

mean to be disrespectful, but I'll just point you out, 

and, well, one at a time.  Please, when you get up to 

the table and you're close to the mic, say your first 

and last name and then spell your last name, so that the 

stenographer, we can make sure we get it all correct.  

 All right.  Does anybody know who's been 

sitting here the longest?  That's where I'd like to 

start.  Thanks for the honesty.  Come forward, please.  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Good morning.  How are 

you?  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Great.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Could you give me your 

name and your -- spell your last.  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Oliver Abejuela, 

A-B-E-J-U-E-L-A.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Make yourself 

comfortable. 

  MR. LAWSON:  I'm a witness, and I was sworn in, 

Robert Lawson, L-A-W-S-O-N.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  Who was the investigator on the case? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  And the 
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applicant was denied for a 2009 carrying a concealed 

weapon, which is a misdemeanor.  He forfeited the weapon 

and paid a fine.  He did disclose it.  And he knew at 

the beginning of the application process that he would 

be denied, come before the Board, for his work card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do you recall the 

incident?  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What was the 

circumstances surrounding the case?  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  I brought a copy of the police 

report.  It speaks for itself.  I was the co-owner --  

  MR. LAWSON:  Show it to them. 

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Oh.  Would you like to see the 

arrest report?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do we have that?   

  MR. SALADINO:  I didn't have the arrest report.  

I just have the court documents.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We wouldn't be 

able to see it without all of the members being able to 

have it.  But you could feel free to send it over to the 

investigator, if you'd like.  

  Thank you.  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Do you want me to continue?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yes, please. 
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  MR. ABEJUELA:  Okay.  At the time, I was the 

co-owner of a smoke shop, slash, hookah lounge with 

former business partners of mine.  It was in the 

afternoon.  We weren't open for business yet.  I was 

sitting down inside the lounge and eating croissants 

when Metro officers came in and told us to put our hands 

up.  I immediately threw the switchblade on the ground.  

They asked me why I had the switchblade.  I said it was 

because I was using it to spread the butter on the 

croissants.  It's on the report, too.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And you pled 

guilty, or tried, what?  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  I pled guilty to the charges.  

And they ordered me to pay a fine.  I believe, it was 

$500.  And they gave me an order to stay out of trouble 

for, I believe it was a year.  And after that, I haven't 

been in any trouble. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The police report does state 

that it was a switchblade.  And it was confiscated 

without question, without any incident.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. Lawson, what 

would you like to add? 

  MR. LAWSON:  I'm Robert Lawson.  I'm from 

Lawson Investigations.  Oliver came to me through our 

programs with the Southwest Institute.  He's graduated 
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as a paralegal.  And he's did a little bit of work for 

me.  And I asked him if he'd be interested in being a 

private investigator, and he said he would. 

  We went through the application process.  I 

asked him to bring me the police report to make sure 

that, in fact, he did, what happened happened.  And, 

again, it does speak for itself. 

  Since then, the law has changed, and having 

that type of a weapon is no longer a crime.  However, he 

didn't make any excuses.  It is what it is.  But he's a 

pretty good dude, and I'd like to have him work for me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Anything 

additional?   

  MR. SALADINO:  No, there's nothing else.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And that was 

disclosed, correct?   

  MR. SALADINO:  It was disclosed, yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll take a quick read of 

the arrest report.  

  (The report was handed to Board Member Flynn.) 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you. 

  MR. ABEJUELO:  You're welcome. 

  (Board Member Flynn looked at the report.) 
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 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What was the preliminary 

reason that you recall why Metro was at the lounge?  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  From what one of the officers 

explained to me, and from also my own belief, it's that 

one of the -- my competitors had made a false call, 

saying that we were being robbed.  Then an officer that 

happened to be across the street, conducting undercover 

on a neighbor of ours, happened to notice one of my 

employees standing outside smoking a cigarette.  And he 

had a handgun on his waistband.  Which was registered.  

So they thought he was trying to rob my store.   

  So they came in, uniform and undercover.  And 

that's why they came in, because they thought he was 

robbing my store.  We explained to them that that's one 

of my employees.  His picture was in a frame on the wall 

as you enter the store, as a matter of fact.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Okay.  And, 

Mr. Lawson, you indicated that he's done a little bit of 

work for you.  In what capacity?  

  MR. LAWSON:  Part of the program about 

Southwest is when they come in, they actually have to do 

practical work, not -- he didn't do any investigation.  

But he has to like be in the office.  He's answered my 

phone.  He's filed for me.  He's sat in on interviews 
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when my other investigators have conducted interviews.  

He's emptied the trash.  That kind of stuff.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'm prepared to make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Please.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion, based 

on the time that's transpired, you're forthcoming, what 

you've done since then, that we overturn the denial and 

grant you your card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions, comments on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

  Hearing none, congratulations.  

  MR. ABEJUELA:  Thank you. 

  MR. LAWSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All right.  This side of 

the room?  Sure, please.  
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  MR. WALKER:  Hello.  My name is Lorenzo Walker. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It's Lorenzo? 

  MR. WALKER:  Yes.  W-A-L-K-E-R. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  Have a seat. 

  Which number is this?  Item number 53.  So 

who's the investigator? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 2009 unlawful carrying of a 

concealed weapon.  The applicant did disclose it.  He 

received three years probation and court fines.  And he  

did meet all the requirements of his probation.   

  And he, the applicant, also has a current 

Nevada concealed weapons license that was issued 6-15 of 

'16.   

  He had applied once before.  And, I think, it 

was like a miscommunication between the investigator 

that was working on it, and he didn't know that he had 

appeal rights.  So in talking with him, he was asking 

again if he would be able to apply and, you know, come 

before the Board.  We told him you do have appeal 

rights, and we will bring him before the Board and go 

from there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Okay.  Mr. Walker, 

do you remember the arrest, conviction, all those 

things? 
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  MR. WALKER:  Yes. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What were the 

circumstances surrounding that?  

  MR. WALKER:  Well, the situation happened with 

my younger sister up at the school.  It was close to the 

time for my little niece to get out of school.  But my 

sister was at the high school, in the incident.  My 

little niece was in elementary.  And it was almost time 

for her to get out when I received the call that the 

police had my sister. 

  My only concern, though, was because she's my 

niece.  So I went up there to -- not really to see what 

was going on, but to get the keys, so I'll be able to 

let my niece in the house and, you know, help her with 

her homework.  But I was coming from my instructor at 

the gun range and when I received the call.  That's the 

only reason why my firearm was in the car.  It wasn't 

loaded.  The magazine wasn't in it.   

  And actually, when I pulled up, the officer, it 

was an officer that pulled up behind me.  I saw my 

little sister pointing at my car, so I knew that's why 

he got behind me.  Me being a law-abiding citizen, I 

pulled over.  And it just so happened, it happened to be 

in the school zone.   

  So that's what he explained to me of what the 
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charges was.  Because I, from my instructor out there in 

California, I was always instructed to let the officer 

know when the firearm was in the car.  So that's what I 

did.  I was being an honest man.   

  And I thought, honestly, he would set me free, 

but he took me to jail.  But I understood it.  I 

understood where I was wrong there.  I mean I know 

there's no cause for being ignorant to the law.  So I do 

know that now.  I did everything I was supposed to do.  

Actually, I just received my other concealed carry for 

Utah.  So. 

  And since I've been out here in 2012, I did odd 

jobs.  I worked on the Strip at Westgate.  I worked for 

Kane's Chicken Company.  And I did odd jobs, worked at 

bars and all that.  And then I ended up getting into a 

car accident.  And throughout the time, with me being in 

the car accident, I had to get surgery done to my neck 

and all that.  So I had to sit down.  I couldn't work. 

  But I wanted my guard card.  So when I went for 

my guard card, I actually had the temporary.  And I was 

actually hired at SOA Security.  I was scheduled, I was 

scheduled to go to the class.  And while I was in the 

gun class, I was pulled out, letting me know that I was 

denied, the first time.  And that broke my heart.   

  Security is what I want to do.  I didn't know 
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that it was still upon me.  And that came back to haunt 

me.  So I had to find out, what can I do to right this 

wrong?   

  And I was instructed by Bruce, the one what was 

working for you guys, to get a -- what was it called?  

You know, the pardon.  I was instructed to get a pardon.  

I went for that, and then I just thought why don't I 

just get it all expunged so this will never have to come 

back up.  So that's what I did.  I got it expunged.  

They pardoned me. 

  And I came and reapplied.  And I knew I would 

get denied.  I was instructed that I was getting denied, 

you know.  And it really hindered me from really wanting 

to do it.  Because I went up there to apply, and I was 

told that I would get denied.  So that was -- I didn't 

want to have that happen to me again.  So I really 

wasn't going to apply again.  And my mom, my wife, 

she -- they convinced me to just have faith and go. 

  So that's what I did.  And I'm here before you 

now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And any other 

Board questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So, Mr. Walker, what 

jurisdiction did this happen in?  

  MR. WALKER:  It was in Lancaster, Quartz Hill.  
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It was out in California.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So the weapon was in the 

auto; it wasn't on you?  

  MR. WALKER:  No. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Is this the only thing 

that you've ever been charged with?  

  MR. WALKER:  Ever.  Ever.  I know it was just 

being ignorant to the law.  But I know that's not an  

excuse.  But I know that now.  I know about it now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions?   

  I'll take a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that we 

overturn, we grant Mr. Walker the appeal and grant him 

his work card, based on time and distance from the 

offense, his forthcomingness and lack of any other 

record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions, comments on the motion?   

  All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 Carries unanimously.  We'll get you your card. 

 MR. WALKER:  Thank you. 

 BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

 BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Good luck. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Over on this side.  

Please.  

  MR. RANDOLPH:  My name is Roger Randolph, 

R-A-N-D-O-L-P-H. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair, please. 

  We're on number 43.  Okay.  Who's the 

investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  Mr. Randolph was previously denied 

by us in 2014.  He did not appeal at the time.   

  When I did this report, I said we didn't have 

his fingerprints.  And we do now.  He has no new 

arrests.  And we just have the 1983 burglary, felony.  

He disclosed it.  He received probation.   

  And then, in 1988, unauthorized possession of 

controlled substance, felony, one year in jail.  He 

disclosed that as well. 

  Those were the only two arrests that came back 

on his fingerprints.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  

Nothing since then, Mr. Randolph?  

  MR. RANDOLPH:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What have you been 

doing with your life?  

  MR. RANDOLPH:  I've been working different 

jobs.  I've had all the guard cards, when I came here in 

'90.  I worked at the Texas Station, worked at the 

Fremont, and several other casinos, as a security 

officer.  Also, I'm also a cook.  So I've done odd jobs 

like, you know, cooking food and stuff like that.  I'd 

like to start my own business.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So that there's no 

confusion with anybody around, proprietary employers 

don't have to come through this agency.  So when he says 

he's worked security for a casino, we're not over, we 

don't have jurisdiction over casino employers.  That's 

what's called a proprietary employer.  So they don't 

offer services for hire to the public.  So that's why a 

casino can hire whoever they want, because they're -- 

that's their employee, protecting their property and 

their customers.  So that's why there's a difference 

between security companies, that hire people to provide 

service to anybody in the public, and a casino or a 

proprietary employer.  That's the difference.  
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 Okay.  Any Board questions?  I'll take a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that we 

grant his appeal and issue him a work card, because 

that's more than a lifetime ago.  

  MR. RANDOLPH:  Thanks.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And you've been a 

productive member of our society and a good citizen 

since then.  I wish you the best of luck, sir. 

  MR. RANDOLPH:  Thanks. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  We have to vote.  Just 

because I feel that way doesn't mean they do.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We got a motion.  We got 

a second.  Any Board questions or comments on the 

motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Now congratulations.  

  MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you very much.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Next up on this side, 

please.  Good afternoon. 

  MR. WARNER:  Good afternoon.  Alton Warner, 

W-A-R-N-E-R. 
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  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  50.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Item number five zero.  

Who is the investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  In 1997, Mr. Warner had a grand 

theft property.  It was a misdemeanor.  He disclosed it.   

  In 2003, he was charged with a felony for one 

count of making a fictitious check.  He did not disclose 

that.  But when asked, he did provide court documents, 

and that's when it shows the felony.  

 2005, one count of burglary.  He did not 

disclose, but the fingerprints showed that it was 

dismissed due to a delay. 

 And that was it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. Warner, what's 

the reason behind the lack of disclosure for the 2003 

and 2005 incidents?  

  MR. WARNER:  I thought, I thought it was only a 

10-year background.  I didn't know that you had to 

disclose anything that you ever did.  That was long ago, 

so I thought it was -- I was going to be okay. 

  I just moved out to Vegas.  I've been here 14 

months now.  And I had been working at another security 

company, because I had a guard card in California.  I 
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didn't know that I was going to be able to get -- I 

didn't know that -- when I got my provisional, I applied 

and everything, I thought it was going to be okay.  I 

didn't think I had to go back so far.  That's all.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And how long have you had 

the guard card in California?  

  MR. WARNER:  14 years.  I was -- I got my card, 

and I was working.  I was supervisor at HSS hospital.  

I've been a supervisor all my career, the company that I 

worked for.  I've never been a regular guard, except for 

when I first came out of high school.  So. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What were the 

circumstances behind the 2003 and the 2005 charges?  

  MR. WARNER:  Well, the fictitious check was I 

wasn't working, and I needed, I had to have, I needed a 

hip replacement.  I was in -- I made a stupid mistake.  

Someone owed me some money, and I did something I 

shouldn't have done.  That was...  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What about the other one?  

  MR. WARNER:  2005, I don't -- well, I guess, 

they consider it burglary.  But, basically, it was 

someone, we got into an altercation, and I took a gun 

from him, and I took their shoes and just made him walk 

home.  And then he ended up calling.  I don't know why 

it was burglary, but.  That was -- basically, I don't 
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know what that, what that was.   

  MS. DONALD:  That was dismissed. 

  MR. WARNER:  Yes.  That's why I was like, I 

mean I never even knew that I needed any, you know, 

anything about it.  So, you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What have you been 

doing for employment since you've been in Nevada?  

  MR. WARNER:  I worked at the Hard Rock, I was 

doing security at the Hard Rock.  I was working for 

Saber Security at different venues, and then at Ocean 

Spray in Henderson.  But I would prefer to have my guard 

card so I can go back to work at HSS.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I have one.  

Investigator Donald, the theft was in 1997.  It was 

revealed, right? 

  MS. DONALD:  It was disclosed, yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Disclosed.  Okay.  And 

the other two were not?   

  MS. DONALD:  Not.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Warner, what was the name of 

the security company you said you were working for?  

  MR. WARNER:  Saber. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

165 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 MR. INGRAM:  Saber? 

  MR. WARNER:  Yes, out here, Saber.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions? 

 I'll take a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll make a motion that 

Alton Warner's appeal be granted and he be allowed his 

work card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion.  Is 

there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Any 

Board comment or questions on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Aye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Aye.  All opposed to the 

motion, say "no." 

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Mr. Warren, you'll 

be entitled to reapply in a year.  

  MR. WARNER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Warner, when you 

reapply in a year, disclose every single thing, now that 

you understand how it operates in Nevada.  
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  MR. WARNER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Over on this side.  

Sir, please.  

  MR. SCOTT:  My name is Robert Scott III, 

S-C-O-T-T.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It's a couple.  Item 

number 46.  Who was the investigator? 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Mr. Scott was denied for a 2007 

possession of a controlled substance, felony conviction 

when he pled guilty.  He did list it on his application.  

He pled guilty in 2007, and the probation conditions 

were met.  In 2010, the conviction was set aside.   

  And, also, in 2016, Mr. Scott was convicted of 

battery, a misdemeanor battery, which he also listed.  

He received a fine, counseling, community service.   

  And those are all of Mr. Scott's convictions.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What was the date on the 

first?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  2007.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Seven.  Okay.  Do you 

recall both those incidents, Mr. Scott?  

  MR. SCOTT:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you tell us the 
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circumstances surrounding 2007?  

  MR. SCOTT:  I was new to Vegas, just separated, 

smoking marijuana on the Strip.  And police officer saw 

me and took me to jail for it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You pled to it?  

  MR. SCOTT:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  And then what 

about the 2016 battery?  

  MR. SCOTT:  That was a little different.  I 

moved into an apartment.  There had been a lot of 

interest in my dog, several of the neighbors and other, 

you know, people.  I went outside one night and saw 

someone messing with him.  I asked the guy to stop and 

identify himself.  We had an altercation.  He ran away.  

I left it alone.  And a few minutes later, the police 

knocked on my door saying that I assaulted him. 

  And we went to court for it.  The counselor 

advised me just to plead it out because it was a 

misdemeanor.  Which I chose to do.  I was taking, you 

know, counsel for it.  So I did the community service.  

I paid the fines off.  And it's still pending now, I 

think, because I still have $200 left on it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions?  

 I'll take a motion.  
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  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion to deny 

the appeal based on the fact of the recency of the 

battery and, just as important, that he has not finished 

his court-directed sentence.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion.  Is 

there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board discussion or 

question regarding the motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Looks like it's very, 

it's really fresh, really new.  And you probably need to 

put some time between it. 

  MR. SCOTT:  It would have been taken care of 

already if I had just being able to work.  Like I have 

been doing security for Leading Edge before when I found 

out that I needed a security card here.  I was doing 

security before I moved to Las Vegas with Securitas.  I 

had a guard card there.  I fight professionally.  I do 

personal training.  So it wasn't something that was at 

the forefront for me taking care of when the battery 

happened.  I went through the community service, and I 

paid the money that I could.  But at the time, I'm all 

out of money, so.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All in favor of the 
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motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed?  No.  

 You can reapply in a year.  

  MR. SCOTT:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Let's see.  Next 

up?  

  MR. HALL:  I'm Jeffrey Hall, H-A-L-L.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Up here, please.  

  Number 33 on the agenda.  And who's the 

investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  So he was 

charged and convicted in 2012 of carrying a concealed 

weapon, a misdemeanor, found guilty, 60 days suspended 

sentence, fined.  He did disclose it.  It was brass 

knuckles.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  That's it? 

  MS. DONALD:  Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Do you recall the 

situation, Mr. Hall?  

  MR. HALL:  Yes.  I was picking up my little 

sister from school.  And before that, I was at home 

cleaning my room.  And my mom asked me to go get my 

sister.  And I had those knuckles in my hand, twirling.  

And I had just put everything in my pocket, my keys and 
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my wallet.  And I had it in my hand.  And by the time I 

got outside, I couldn't put it back inside.  So I just 

put it in my pocket.  And when I went to the school, the 

dean of the school had like seen the imprint, when the 

wind blew, and the police was right there, and he 

grabbed me for it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. HALL:  And I have my -- the arrest record 

stating what it was.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

Board questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Mr. Hall, what have you 

been doing?  

  MR. HALL:  I was site supervisor for Larkin 

Security.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Where, whereabouts is 

that?  

  MR. HALL:  Here in Las Vegas.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You're a supervisor for 

security?  

  MR. HALL:  Yes, Larkin Security, site 

supervisor for Ogden on Fremont.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So you had a card --   

  MR. HALL:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  -- and it was taken away?  
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I'm confused. 

  MS. DONALD:  Provisional.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Oh, it was a provisional 

card that we got --  

  MS. DONALD:  Yes.  Yeah, when we got the 

fingerprints back.  And it is a renewal as well.  He did 

this at -- after he had received his first card.  He 

received his card in 2012, and then this happened a few 

months after.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Hall, do you 

want to explain the "being rude, angry, argumentative 

and swearing at our employees"?  

  MR. HALL:  Honestly, I was just angry.  Like I 

was doing so good.  And all this like was a setback for 

me.  And I had just got promoted.  And like, you know, I 

have a son.  I have bills.  And it was just a setback.  

And I was really angry.  Sorry about that, by the way.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No, it takes a lot to 

apologize, and I appreciate that.  

  MR. HALL:  Yeah, I was just really angry.   

  MS. DONALD:  It was frustration in him.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  I still look at it, 

I still look at, that took a lot.  I appreciate it.  

Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions?  
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  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I have one.  You 

received your card in 2012?  

  MR. HALL:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  And subsequently, after 

that, you got into -- got this case, right?  So you -- 

was there -- how long of a time period did he not have 

his card?   

  MS. DONALD:  It was a few months.  And it 

wasn't a felony.  So I don't think he was required to 

disclose it.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Mm, okay.  So shortly 

after you received the case, you were not working 

anymore from that point, or?  

  MR. HALL:  No, I was still working.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  So he went to reapply? 

  MS. DONALD:  He -- yeah.  This was a renewal.  

It's a renewal.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay.  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Anything else?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Is that the only charge 

on your record?   

  MR. HALL:  I'm clean.  I'm done with that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  I'll take a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll make a motion that 

Jeffrey Hall's card be -- that his appeal be granted and 
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that he's allowed to get his work card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll second that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and a second.  Any 

comment or question on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 Unanimous.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Do I have to go 

back and apply for it? 

  MS. DONALD:  No.  We'll be in touch about the 

card.   

  MR. HALL:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  I'll contact you in the next 

couple of days.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MS. DONALD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  This side?  

  MR. KILGORE:  Good afternoon, members of the 

Board.  My name is "Shane," but it's spelled 

S-H-A-V-O-N, and K-I-L-G-O-R-E.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Just let me find 

you here.  Item number 36 on the agenda.  "Sheh-VON"?  
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  MR. KILGORE:  "Shane." 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  "SHAY-ven"? 

  MR. KILGORE:  "Shane."  It's pronounced 

"Shane." 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Ah, got it.  Who's the 

investigator?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  And Shavon was denied for a 

2007 felony possession of controlled substance 

conviction.  And it was listed.  He had 10 days in jail, 

three years probation, a fine.  And the conviction was 

later dismissed under 1203.4 in California.  

 Also, two burglary convictions, misdemeanors, 

one in 2005, one in 2006.  Both convictions also both 

listed.  

 And then a 2007 misdemeanor DUI, which he also 

listed, sentenced to three years probation and a fine.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So everything in 

his past was listed?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Can you give us a rundown 

on the criminal history issues? 

  MR. KILGORE:  Oh, yeah.  Well, the commercial 

burglaries that I was given, I was with my ex-wife 
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actually at a young age.  And, unfortunately, she handed 

me a backpack that had a bunch of dresses in it, as we 

were walking out.  I did not know that she stole any 

items.  And, therefore, they grabbed me, and they 

grabbed her.  They arrested us.  They charged us.  I 

paid all my fine, revenues, reimbursement, then went to 

jail, did my time.   

  And then, right after, my cousin Justin decided 

we were going to go to the store.  And he started 

stealing stuff.  I walked away from him.  I actually 

walked out of the Dillard's, because I didn't want to be 

any a part of it, for what just happened to me with my 

ex.  And so they grabbed me as I got to the door.  He 

was already in the dressing room.  We were far apart.  

They came at me saying that, you know, I was there.  

What's it called when you're the accomplice or 

something?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Conspirator?  

  MR. KILGORE:  Yeah.  So they arrested me for 

that.  I did my time with that, fines, revenue, 

reimbursement, everything.  

 My DUI, unfortunately, I don't know why I keep 

getting myself with -- you know, getting in trouble.  I 

was under the influence of marijuana and just came back 

from a concert.  We were actually in California.  She 
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was a dancer at a strip club.  I told her I didn't want 

to come pick her up.  But she was heavily under the 

influence of coke, drugs, and the list goes on, and 

drinking.  I didn't want to pick her up.   

 I went sideways over a railroad track, because 

I have a very lowered Honda, and if I tried to go 

straight over, I would have just got stuck on the 

railroad track.  The cop said I was swerving.  I told 

him I think he ought to look at the car.  And they 

actually couldn't give me the Breathalyzer, because I 

wasn't under the influence with any drinking or 

anything.  I was just at a concert getting stoned.  

 So then he said, "Well, we want to take you in.  

We're not going to impound the car."  They actually let 

her drive off with my vehicle, so they wouldn't impound 

it.  Which I don't know why, because that's even more 

reckless than what I was just read.  I wasn't, you know, 

swerving or anything.  I was just trying to pick her up 

and go.  

 So they did the bloodwork.  And then they gave 

me, I think it was, you know, over the limit.  And they 

got me for the marijuana context.  And I'm two months 

away from actually having that off my record.  It's 10 

years old.  So I've stayed out of the trouble since 

then.  I really don't want to go back down that road 
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with any of these. 

 My mom is here.  I'm actually doing this for 

the reasoning for the fact that I'm not allowed to rent 

any apartments.  I've applied a bunch of places.  They 

keep denying me because of my felony.   

 I actually got a really good job.  I went for 

the interview.  They did the background check.  They 

didn't know I had a felony.  Because when me and my mom 

went to court for the controlled substance in Merced, we 

moved out of Lancaster, California, went to Merced.  I 

did Prop. 36 for a couple -- I think, it was a year and 

a half.  I paid my fine for revenue reimbursement.  I 

also did NA/AA classes, and I had to see my probation 

every single day, and I had to be drug-tested every 

single day.   

 So they said once everything was done, if I got 

in no more trouble, that they would reduce it down to 

the misdemeanor.  That wasn't the case.  I actually 

found out from a job that I applied for here in 

Las Vegas, that when they did the background check, they 

said, "You have a felony still." 

 So then we investigated a little bit more, 

asking if they could send me the records to show where 

it's coming up from, because I didn't know where it was 

coming.  It didn't come from Merced.  We actually had a 
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fluke mishap where after we had the sentencing for the 

controlled substance, they were supposed to reduce it 

down to a misdemeanor, send the files back, because it 

was a transferred case, from Mojave to Merced, so I can 

do my hearing there.  Somehow the paperwork didn't get 

sent back down.  And we thought for the longest that I 

didn't have a felony, until I tried to apply for that 

job. 

 So they found that.  And then I'm just spending 

loads of money to get my felony reduced to a 

misdemeanor, not going for a Prop. 47, going for a 17 

munition so I can get my gun rights restored.  I did 

that.  I have my gun rights.  I've already purchased a 

gun.  I've already filed for my CCW.  I'm waiting two 

more months for it to come back, that they'll say, 

"You're allowed to have it." 

 And I just want to change my life around.  You 

know, I was young, dumb and out of control.  You have to 

go through a couple failures in order to grow and gain 

the knowledge and become a better citizen in this role.  

And that's just something I want to do.  

 The other reason why I want to go for anything 

that's in security was I live right down the street from 

the incident that happened at the Starbucks.  I was like 

two minutes away from going to that store where the guy 
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pulled the gun out and shot one of the customers.  I was 

about to go into that store.  And I said, you know what, 

that shouldn't happen to anyone, you know.  I mean if I 

was there and, you know, I was able to carry my CCW, 

maybe I would have been able to help the people that 

were in that store, you know.   

 And I just want to change my life.  I want to 

do something better for myself.  And I want to become a 

better citizen.  So I fought 10 years to get all of this 

off my record and take it out.  I just, I don't want to 

go down that path anymore.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

questions? 

 I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion to 

grant his appeal based on the applicant's forthcoming, 

time and distance.  Almost 10 years, and I normally use 

10 years, and we're only like a month away.   

  And like the Chairman said to another applicant 

before, please don't prove me wrong.  

  MR. KILGORE:  I won't.  I will definitely gear 

my path to stay on the right path.  You know, my 

parents, my dad is actually a security officer for the 

Plaza.  He was actually awarded employee of the year.  

And I really look up to him because he's always been 
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there.  He's actually a stepfather, but I don't see him 

as that.  I see him as a real father, because my real 

dad's never really been in my life.  And this is my mom 

back here, who I live with.  And she's seen the 

struggles I've had to go through. 

  I don't want to ever go down that path again.  

You know, there's a point in time where you got to grow 

up and you got to change.  And it's up to us to decide.  

It's not the motivation that really pushed me forward.  

It's the decision that I don't want to be locked into 

the criminal lifestyle.  You know, to fight 10 years to 

get myself out of the criminal justice and start 

becoming a normal citizen has been one heck of a ride.  

But it wouldn't regret anything that I've done, because 

I don't think I would have ever grown if I didn't go 

through it.  And that's the choices that God gave me, 

and I have to do what's right for him and myself and for 

my family.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

Do we have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Second.  And any comments 

or questions on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

  Unanimous.  Congratulations. 

  MR. KILGORE:  Thank you so much.  Like I know 

you guys don't know my story.  But it's been one long 

road.  And I really, really thank you. 

  MR. KILGORE'S MOM:  It really has, it's been a 

long struggle.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Good luck. 

  MR. KILGORE:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sir.  

  MR. BROWN:  My name is James Brown, B-R-O-W-N.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a seat.   

  Item number 29.  How easy is it growing up with 

that name?  

  MR. BROWN:  I'm a junior, too.  I'm the third.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Who's the investigator?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 2001 battery with serious 

bodily injury, a felony.  He spent five years probation, 

eight months in jail.  It was not disclosed on the 

application.   

  And that is the only, that's the only felony 

conviction that we have.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 
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  MR. BROWN:  I would like to say that that was 

the biggest mistake of my life and what changed me and, 

now, you know.  I really, like the person before that, I 

was in an abusive marriage.  And it was just I pretty 

much lost it.  So it was like, after that, I realized 

that that was the worst thing anybody, anyone would do.  

And I regretted it then, and I regret it now.  And I do 

have empathy for the victim.   

  I've changed my life, you know.  And I've been 

working with jobs.  And I worked for Whirlpool, did 

installation.  I moved here from California.  And I went 

back to school and got my HVAC license.  You know, I'm a 

teacher right now and have been married many years to my 

beautiful wife, Christine Brown.  I have to say that.   

  And, you know, I like the security work.  I 

worked with Century for a little bit.  And then that, 

you know, they denied me. 

  So I'm here to just, just to let you know that 

that's the type of work I wouldn't mind doing, you know, 

helping people.  I always did like helping people, 

giving me other ways, you know.  I'll help them, like if 

they're going through situations in their relationships, 

I will use myself as an example of what can happen when 

you do something wrong.   

  So that's, basically, why I'm doing it.  But 
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I'm here to let you know that I have changed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What was the 

reason why you didn't disclose the --   

  MR. BROWN:  Oh.  Oh, in California, I was, I 

was dumb.  Because I didn't want to go the past 10 

years, you know.  And I got here, and I didn't think.  

You know, I was just -- I don't know why I did that.  

You know, and I used like the years, like seven years, 

10 years, whatever I did, and I just won't do it, 

because, you know, it's past that.  But that was the 

only reason.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Is that all that's on 

his record, is that? 

  MR. SALADINO:  The number two, that's one 

that's a typo.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay. 

  MR. SALADINO:  It was a carryover from a --  

  MR. BROWN:  But I wanted to say that I had a 

year of anger management.  And that taught me a lot.  

You know, that really did teach me a lot, my empathy and 

just, you know, control yourself, and not getting out of 

character when something -- you know, and be in that 

tough situation I was in. 
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  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Was that a stipulation 

from the battery charge, that you have anger management?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes.  I took a year for that anger 

management, too.  And, I think, it was a probation like 

five years or something.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions?  

 Entertain a motion.  

 I'd make a motion that number 29, James L. 

Brown, that the denial be overturned and he be awarded a 

card.  Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll second it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion and a 

second.  Any Board comment or questions on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All opposed, say "no." 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Mr. Colbert, your rule 

was "aye," correct?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  I voted for it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So it's three to 

one.  You will be given your card.  

  MR. BROWN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  
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  MR. BROWN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Next up?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  I'm Demitris, last name 

Mitchell, M-I-T-C-H-E-L-L.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair. 

  Item number 38.  Who's the investigator?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  

Mr. Mitchell was denied for a 2006 burglary conviction.  

He had two felony, you know, two counts of felony 

burglary.  He did disclose the conviction.  And he was 

sentenced to 12 to 40 months in the Nevada State Prison 

on both counts to run concurrent.  His prison sentence 

was suspended on both counts, and he only received three 

years probation, boot camp, counseling, restitution.  

But Mr. Mitchell, he did violate that probation multiple 

times, was ordered back to camp.  But he did eventually 

receive a dishonorable discharge in 2008.  

  That's his only conviction.  It was in 2006.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do you remember the 

occasion?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What were the 

circumstances behind the criminal act?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Me and my son's mother, well, 

I'll say my stepson --   



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

186 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You need to speak up.  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Me and my 

stepson's mother, we got a -- was living on the north 

side of town.  It was called the Oasis Apartments.  Just 

moved in like probably four months, I think, four months 

in.  And one of my used-to-be close friends, or my 

cousin called me one day and woke me up in the morning 

and was saying that, oh, he needed a ride from where he 

was at.  And I was like, well, I got to work in the 

morning.  Because I was working intensive, the job, 

trying to get hired on somewhere downtown, because I 

used to work at Lady Luck, when it was open.  I was 

doing busing.   

  And then I got up in the morning.  I'm like, 

"Okay.  I'll come and get you," went down there and got 

him.  He had stolen goods.  And I was going to take my 

girlfriend, Karla, and go get him, you know, so looking 

out for a family member.  And the next thing you know, 

we get to the corner, the police just came and 

surrounded us.  And he had like four or five bags.   

  I'm not trying to put it all on him or anything 

like that.  I was in the wrong place at the wrong time, 

just trying to look out.  And that was my first, first 

offense, anything.  Like I didn't know what was on at 

the time, because I was young.  And they charged me with 
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the same thing with him, and they charged me concurrent.  

And that was my first time.  So that's why they gave me 

boot camp instead.  And he had more time, because 

multiples offense.   

  And the denial on the dishonorable discharge 

was I'm new, and they switched probation officers, so I 

didn't know that I had a curfew at the time.  I didn't 

know none of that.  But my probation officer, 

Mr. Segato, I believe, recommended me with no curfew, no 

nothing.  But when they switched it, I didn't know.  I 

moved.  I went back to my mom's house, because the work 

and stuff wasn't right.  And we kind of like, me and my 

son's mother started separating a little bit.  And I 

lived with my mom at the time.  And then that's when 

they put something for me at the old address.  And so a 

lot of things got misunderstood.  And they denied me, 

they gave me dishonorable discharge.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So how much time 

did you do in total?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Well, I think, in total, I 

think -- because I was in the county for a while.  So I 

was in there for like six months, I believe.  And then 

they finally came and got me, and I went to boot camp 

that day.  So I would say like a year, so six and six.  

They gave me six months for boot camp. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. MITCHELL:  And ever since then, I've just 

been just laying low, just keeping the straight and 

narrow.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What have you been doing 

for a living?  

 MR. MITCHELL:  Oh, right now, I actually work 

for Aristocrat.  But through all the time that I've been 

clean, I've been working through a lot of temp agencies 

and stuff, just keeping focused.  And then, right now, I 

work for Aristocrat, the gaming company.  That's where.  

And I've been there for a year and a half, so.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I have a question for 

you, sir.  The burglary, you say you picked your cousin 

up, and he had a what?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  He had like a lot of bags and 

stuff, so. 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Bags as in? 

  MR. MITCHELL:  Like stolen things.  And it was 

in my car, so.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  So there were things 

just in bags?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Yeah, but I thought it was like 

his clothes, or whatever, because he just called me and 

said, "Come and get me."   
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  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Okay. 

  MR. MITCHELL:  That's what happened.  Because 

that's where I work for now.  I got off of work today 

just to come to the Board meeting.  I was going to go 

back, but they said I can come back anytime, so.  But I 

mean it's not permanent where I'm at.   

  And I'm just trying to make more money for 

myself, you know.  I think, that would be the best thing 

for me, security, because I -- I forgot the company name 

that actually worked for Aristocrat, told me just apply 

and go, send me, go on somewhere else.  I could just 

work there, with security, right there, where I'm 

already at and I'm already standard at already.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman, I've got a question.   

  Who was the boot camp man at the time?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  I forgot his name.  It was 

Lieutenant -- what is his name?  I've lost it.  I want 

to say Bookem, but.  What is his name?  He was an old 

guy, too.  I can't remember.  It was so long ago.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  I was just curious.  

  MR. MITCHELL:  It's going to pop up.  I know 

it's going to pop up.  But it's been so long ago.  Yeah, 

I'll say he kept it straight on me the whole time, so.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other questions?  

 Okay.  Entertain a motion?  
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 We're on 38, right?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I move that we 

overturn the denial and issue a card to Demitris 

Mitchell.  Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  We have a motion and a 

second.  Any comment or questions of the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 Don't make us out to be fools, please.  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Thank you very much.  I'm 

shaking right now.  Thank you so much.  Working on these 

temporary jobs, trying to stay out of the way.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you for coming. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Good luck to you. 

  MR. MITCHELL:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sir, please.  

  MR. JOSHUA:  Javarcus Joshua, J-O-S-H-U-A.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Who was the investigator? 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for a 

conspiracy of carrying a concealed weapon in 2012.   
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  He had some other arrests as well.  And he did 

disclose them.  They were 2015, breaking and tampering 

with a vehicle and domestic battery.  The first charge 

was reduced to a misdemeanor.  The second charge, a 

domestic battery, he was found guilty a misdemeanor, did 

five days in jail. 

  2014, there was a DUI.  He pled guilty and paid 

a fine.   

  2013, possession of marijuana.  It was a 

misdemeanor.  There was no disposition.   

  Again in 2013, there was a breach of peace, a 

misdemeanor, no dispo listed.   

  2011, there was a trespassing.   

  And there was a few of them, from February 16, 

2011 and 7-5 of 2010. 

  In 2010, there was a hit-and-run, but that was 

dismissed per the courts and the fingerprint report.   

  Then, in 2010, there was an obstructing of a 

peace officer.  It was a misdemeanor.  No dispo again on 

that one.   

  And then, 2016, there was a domestic battery.  

He's currently enrolled in a court program and enrolled 

in community service.  And it does show an outstanding 

balance with the court.  

 And his background also showed a recent 
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September 22nd, 2016 domestic violence arrest. 

 Also, the applicant had been trespassed from 

three different locations in Henderson and Las Vegas.  

One was the Highland Village, the Walmart on Nellis, and 

by a resident located at East Carey.  He does have a 

trespass ID number as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Do you recall all of 

these incidents?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  What do you got to 

say?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  I don't know.  Basically, the... 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Well, we're going to have 

to do better than that.  You're here to convince us to 

overturn something. 

  MR. JOSHUA:  Basically, yeah, I like my job,  

they like me.  It's, basically, the only job I have for 

so long, basically.  And I was hoping that you would.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Well, without an 

explanation, how are we supposed to?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  It's not an explanation.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Chairman? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Yeah. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Joshua, what do you do for 

a living now?   
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  MR. JOSHUA:  I was working for Protect.  Right 

now, I'm in the middle of looking right now.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  How long were you were 

Protect? 

  MR. JOSHUA:  I was with Protect, I had just got 

hired in December, and I got my card in January, and I 

started January 1st. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Oh, you had a provisional 

card?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  Yes.  And on the 10th, I had got a 

call from Denny. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You've been here for a 

couple hours, right?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And you've heard our 

comments about time and distance since the last time  

you've been in trouble.  You need to show it for a few 

years, sir, I mean if you want to be in security work.  

I mean you've been in trouble, grave offenses, probably 

the most I've seen this morning.   

  And I respect and I appreciate your interest in 

the industry.  But my opinion is that we need some time 

and distance from your activity with the police.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any other Board question, 

comments?  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

194 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 Is there anything you would like to add?  

  MR. JOSHUA:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion to deny 

the appeal and follow the recommendations of staff.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  There's a motion.  Do we 

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and second.  Any 

Board comment or question on the motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no."  

 You're eligible to come back in a year and 

reapply.  

  MR. JOSHUA:  All right.  Thanks.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you. 

  MR. JOSHUA:  Have a nice day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  You, too.  

 Okay.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Ryan Prentiss.  It's 

P-R-E-N-T-I-S-S. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Have a chair. 
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  Item number 41.  Who's the investigator? 

  MS. DONALD:  Investigator Donald.  Mr. Prentiss 

disclosed his felony for a 2002 possession of cocaine 

with intent to sell.  He was sentenced to 12 to 48 

months in Nevada State Prison, probation and counseling.   

The court documents show he was charged with a felony.  

But then probation was revoked, and he had to serve 

time.   

  However, he has several other arrests that were 

not disclosed.  Let's see. 

  2009, driving under the influence, misdemeanor, 

pled guilty.   

  2009, assault on a peace officer or public 

official.  It was originally charged as a gross mis.  

This was reduced to a misdemeanor, and he served jail 

time. 

  2009 again, possession of marijuana, one ounce 

or less, misdemeanor, pled guilty.   

  2007, pled guilty to battery domestic violence, 

misdemeanor.  Let's see. 

  In 2000, he was charged with possession of 

cocaine with intent to sell.  This was reduced to a 

misdemeanor.  He was fined and served, Clark County, the 

Detention Center. 

  And then, later, in 2000, he had possession of 
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marijuana, a felony, but it was reduced to a 

misdemeanor, and he was fined and served time in jail.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  None of them, except for 

the felony, were disclosed? 

  MS. DONALD:  Yeah, he did disclose one of the 

domestic violences.  So the 2004 possession, attempt to 

sell felony and the 2000 domestic violence were 

disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Sir, is there a reason 

that you didn't disclose?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Well, no, sir.  I don't even 

know what was going on as far as the word you guys got 

right now.  I went down to the police station and got my 

report and brought it to the place where I, you know, 

signed up to get my card.  And the lady, she kept it.  

And I don't know why she didn't put it in there with all 

the other stuff I had.   

  But I don't know why they didn't disclose 

those.  Because I did my classes, I completed all my 

classes for the other cases.  I went to jail for it.  

And, I believe, they're -- I don't know what was going 

on with all the other stuff.  I did my time for 

everything.   

  And all of the domestic violences, I went to my 

classes, and I completed the class.  I got the 
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certificates stating I completed them, and everything.  

So I don't know what, what's going on with that, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Is there a SCOPE 

printout contained in the file?   

  MS. DONALD:  Yes, there's a SCOPE.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  From the original  

application that he provided?   

  MS. DONALD:  I have the -- from what he had 

written down, yes, I do have that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Does that disclose -- 

he's claiming that he brought in a SCOPE printout. 

  MS. DONALD:  Oh. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And gave it to somebody.  

Is that contained in the file?   

  MS. DONALD:  We don't normally keep those, 

because we can't upload it, but actually to have it, 

yeah.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  She took it. 

  MS. DONALD:  They're not uploaded.  Yeah.  His 

original application, he didn't list anything other than 

the one.  So I had talked to him, and he had to disclose 

the rest of these.  But it's all, it's all in the SCOPE. 

  MR. INGRAM:  It's in the SCOPE we ran and in 

the SCOPE that he provided us? 

  MS. DONALD:  Correct.  But the original 
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application, it was not disclosed.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Does his SCOPE printout mirror the 

SCOPE printout that we ran? 

  MS. DONALD:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And is there a date on 

both of them? 

  MS. DONALD:  There's dates.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  When the printout was 

done?   

  MS. DONALD:  Oh, let's see.  It was 7-19 of 

2016.  Then, when I ran the SCOPE was April 5th, 2016.  

So when I ran the SCOPE, I've been working with him for 

a while because there were some other things that we had 

to take care of, such as warrants.  We took care of all 

those.  But I ran his background.  He'd only disclosed 

one thing.  I told him he had undisclosed arrests, you 

need to get your SCOPE.  That's when he went and got 

that in July.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MS. DONALD:  Yeah.  And then we got the 

fingerprints back, and everything that happened is in 

Las Vegas.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  I mean I'm born and raised here, 

I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So the last time 
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you had any participation in the criminal justice system 

was when?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  It was like 2009, something like 

that, or either '10.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  And what have you been 

doing with your --   

  MR. PRENTISS:  I've been working, sir.  I work 

security at Saber Security.  I worked there for a couple 

months.  And then I got kicked out of that because of my 

card, my cards.  And, basically, that's why I do 

security.  I worked, even though you said not to bring 

it up, I worked at the Plaza.  I worked for Saber 

Security.  I worked for -- there's like a bunch of 

different security places I worked for, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  What would you say were 

the catalysts or the -- were you a user of narcotics? 

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Because that's usually 

what the start of everything is?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, basically.  Yes.  And I 

have help.  You know, I went to AA, NA, got help.  And I 

haven't been doing nothing since.  It's been the whole 

time.  We're together, you know.  I got kids to take 

care of.  I got bills, responsibilities.  And like I 

said before, that's my field of work, security.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  So when you 

originally applied, the very first time that you 

applied, before they started working with you to try to  

get things worked out, what, why did you not disclose 

your criminal history, except for your 2004?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Oh, well, because like I thought 

there was only supposed to be like my felony.  I only 

got one felony in my life.  So I was like, I thought 

that was -- I was supposed to just put that.  But when I 

talked to her, she said, no, I got to put, you know, all 

my stuff.  So I'm like I can't remember all the things 

I've been through.  So I went and got my SCOPE. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay. 

  MR. PRENTISS:  I paid the 10 bucks and got that 

and brought it back to her, and went from there.  Like I 

wasn't -- I only sit there and I write stuff that -- 

that I, you know, forgot about, forgot about other 

things that I've done in my life, you know.  But that's 

why I ordered the SCOPE, where she can have everything, 

you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  

 Mr. Prentiss, tell us about when you assaulted 

a police officer.  
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  MR. PRENTISS:  Assault?  It wasn't like no 

assault like that.  I wasn't trying to fight with him.  

It was just I ran.  There was no physical fight.  I just 

like don't move up, ran.  And they caught me and slammed 

me and put me in jail.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  When you say you had 

treatment, how long have you been clean?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Oh, I've been clean for like 

almost 14, like 14 years.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  14 years?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Do you include alcohol?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  I barely drink, only --   

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Do you still drink?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  On occasions.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  As far as like weed and all 

that, I don't indulge in that no more.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

questions?  

  Entertain a motion.  

 BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  I'll make the motion 

that Ryan Prentiss be granted his appeal and issued a 

work card.  There's no -- it doesn't say anything really 
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on his SCOPE stuff that I -- I don't know how to add for 

the 14 years, but since all figured it out, the good job 

services and the clean for 14 years, so you do put these 

things behind you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

Is there a second?  

 I'll second.   

 We have a motion and a second.  Any Board 

comment, questions on the motion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Aye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All opposed to the 

motion, say "no." 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  No.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  No.  

  You're eligible to come back in a year.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you.  

  Do we have anybody waiting to be heard in the 

north?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No, there's no one here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Let's see.  I 

guess, we better -- hopefully, somebody's been keeping 

track so we can call all that's left.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  So we have item number 31, Paul  

Espiritu.  He was, all individuals have been noticed 

appropriately and informed of their case.  So item 

number 31 is a no-show.  Item number 32 is no-show.  

Item number 40 is a no-show.  Item number 42 is a 

no-show.  Item number 48 is a no-show.  Item 45 withdrew 

the appeal.   

  And did I miss any?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So 31, 32, 40, 42 and 48 

are no-shows?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That's correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I'll make a motion 

to deny the appeals for items number 31, 32, 40, 42 and 

48.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any Board comment or 

question on the motions?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any opposed, say "no." 

 It's unanimous.  

 We're not considering 45, because they withdrew 

the appeal? 

 MR. INGRAM:  Correct.  We have to go back to 

the trailed item, number 10 on the agenda.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Chenega Infinity, item 

number 10, LLC.  

  MR. INGRAM:  We trailed that in order to get an 

answer to Mr. Flynn's question. 

  Do you have an answer for him? 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yes, sir.  I spoke with 

Mr. Bentley again.  He's been at Chenega for 10 years.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  He's been what? 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  At Chenega.   

  (The Reported indicated there's difficulty 

hearing Mr. Batchelor.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  He's our soft-spoken investigator. 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I can barely hear him, and 

I'm 700 miles closer. 

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you. 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Investigator Batchelor.  I 

spoke with Mr. Bentley again.  He's been at Chenega for 

10 years.  He's currently the QA in other states, and 

that's his position there.  He's trying to be the QA for 

them here, to start their business here, so they can get 

that contract that I spoke about earlier.   

  And he's -- that's his position, just a QA.  

And that's all he does, is handles licensing and 

regulatory items for Chenega.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  So he's never been 
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a security officer, he's just the business end?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  (Nodded head affirmatively.)  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Okay.  And what do we know 

about Chenega?  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Well, I don't know, as far as 

his history before Chenega, because in his -- for an 

application to change status like that, that's not in 

the application, to his employment history.  So.  But 

when I -- in my review of Chenega, I found nothing 

negative for Chenega at all anywhere in my search for 

Chenega.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Yeah, and I'm not doubting 

that.  I mean if I started a security company tomorrow, 

you'd find nothing negative about it, either.  But I've 

got no security experience.  That's what I mean.  I know 

nothing about their company.  I know nothing about the 

man.  And I'm being asked to make a decision.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  So I personally have 

concerns on making the decision.  On top of that, he's 

not here.  And it's also a very important contract to 

the security of one of our national infrastructure 

sites.  

 So I think that it's the pleasure of us, as the 

Board.  But I am very uncomfortable making a decision 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR'S LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 03-08-17 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

206 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

without knowing nothing, anything about the company, or 

him not being here.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I need to say, it's 

nothing against your investigation.  I just don't have 

any information.    

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Then, I suppose, we'll bring 

him back next Board meeting, or request for him to.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  It's the pleasure of the 

Board.  That's just my opinion.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Any questions?   

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  And Mr. Lamb, he's also 

employed there at Chenega?   

 MR. BATCHELOR:  He's, I believe, he's one of 

the officers.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Oh, he's one of the 

officers.  Yeah.  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yeah.  Owner, officer.  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  It says in the notes that 

his previous background investigation has established 

sufficient hours of certified private patrol experience. 

  MR. BATCHELOR:  Right.  He's changing, he's 
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becoming QA for this new company.  And he did have the 

previous background, for which I saw he was approved 

before for a PPL, for a security license, previously.  

That was back in 2009.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  So he had the requisite 

experience to be licensed in the 2009.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chairman, traditionally, in a 

situation like this, if an investigation was completed 

years prior, and it was determined by the Board staff at 

that time, and granted a license by the Board at that 

time, traditionally, we don't go back, staff doesn't go 

back and reevaluate that or bring that information 

forward.   

  If the Board would like us to do that in the 

future, to give a little bit more of a summary that they 

in the past have been licensed and who were approved 

years previous, we can definitely do that, if the Board 

would like to see that.  What we normally do is go back 

and say they met the requirements at that time, the 

Board approved it at that time, and then complete the 

investigation moving forward.   

  So he's had an active license.  It has not been 

in abeyance.  So he's been meeting the requirements of 

the renewals every year, keeping his insurance up to 

date as well, but actually working for a company out of 
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state, not currently conducting business in Nevada.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other Board questions?  

 Okay.  Did you make a motion, or just comment? 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  That was my comment.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  And I'll add, I mean all 

the other people that have come forward, either we know 

something about their business or they tell us something 

about their business.  I don't have any knowledge.  And 

like I said, I'm skeptical, especially with that type of 

contract.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  Any other Board 

comment or question?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  I'll hear a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  I'll make a motion that we 

trail it to the next meeting.  And either he attends or 

we find out about his company.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Okay.  There's a motion.  

Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLLINS:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Motion and second to 

trail the matter to the next scheduled quarterly 
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meeting.  Any questions or comments regarding the 

motion?  

 All in favor, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Opposed, say "no."  No.  

  Three to one.  Trailed.  

 Let me see.  Anything else?  I think, that was 

it, right?  

 Okay.  Do we have any other Board comment and 

future agenda item possibilities?  

 Hearing none, do we have any public comment in 

the north?  

  BOARD MEMBER COLBERT:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Nothing?  Any public 

comment in the south?  Just making a hark in the air.  

 None here.  

 That should wrap us up.  Move to adjourn.  

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  All in favor?  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN ZANE:  Thank you so much, folks.   

* * * * * 

(The meeting adjourned at 1:33 p.m.) 

-oOo- 
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